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1             January 6, 2016       10:01 a.m.

2                P R O C E E D I N G S

3             MS. SEDOR:  Let's go on the record.

4 Good morning.  This is Wednesday, January 6th, 2016,

5 and this is the beginning of the evidentiary hearing

6 in NSTAR Electric Company, d/b/a Eversource Energy,

7 docketed as EFSB 14-4/DPU 14-153/14-154.

8             I'm Kathryn Sedor.  I'm the hearing

9 officer in this case.  To my immediate left is

10 Charlene de Boer, an analyst with the Siting Board.

11 To her left is John Young, the technical director in

12 the Siting Division.  And to John's left is Barbara

13 Shapiro, the environmental director in the Siting

14 Division.

15             What I will do at this point is swear in

16 each of the NSTAR witnesses, and then we'll ask

17 counsel to have the witnesses adopt their prefiled

18 direct testimony.

19             Before they would do that, if I could

20 have counsel for each of the parties who's here this

21 morning simply enter their appearance for the

22 record.

23             MS. KEUTHEN:  Catherine Keuthen and

24 Cheryl Blaine, from the law firm of Keegan Werlin,
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1 on behalf of NSTAR Electric Company, d/b/a

2 Eversource Energy.

3             MS. SEDOR:  Thank you, Ms. Keuthen.

4             MR. THAYER:  Ken Thayer, Lisa Goodheart,

5 for Channel Fish Company, Incorporated, intervenor.

6             MR. BERARDI:  Don Berardi, also with

7 Channel Fish.

8             MR. RIKLEEN:  Sander Rikleen.  I'm

9 counsel for intervenor Anne R. Jacobs, trustee of

10 Vernhunt Realty.

11             MS. SEDOR:  Thank you, Mr. Rikleen.

12             Start at my far left.  If you could just

13 state your name, please.

14             WITNESS BERGERON:  Sure.  My name is

15 Marc Bergeron.

16             MS. SEDOR:  Good morning, Mr. Bergeron.

17                MARC BERGERON, Sworn

18             MS. SEDOR:  Mr. Zicko, good morning.

19             WITNESS ZICKO:  Good morning, Ms. Sedor.

20                JOHN M. ZICKO, Sworn

21             MS. SEDOR:  If you could just state your

22 name.

23             WITNESS ZBIKOWSKI:  Rich Zbikowski.

24             RICHARD C. ZBIKOWSKI, Sworn



 EFSB 14-4, DPU 14-153+154 - Vol. 1 - 1/6/2016

FARMER ARSENAULT BROCK LLC

5

1             WITNESS BERGER:  Frances Berger.

2             MS. SEDOR:  Good morning, Ms. Berger.

3             FRANCES BERGER, Sworn

4             WITNESS O'MALLEY:  Michael O'Malley.

5             MS. SEDOR:  Good morning, Mr. O'Malley.

6             MICHAEL W. O'MALLEY, Sworn

7             MS. SEDOR:  Ms. Keuthen?  Or Ms. Blaine?

8 MARC BERGERON, JOHN M. ZICKO, RICHARD C. ZBIKOWSKI,

9       FRANCES BERGER, AND MICHAEL W. O'MALLEY,

10 having been duly sworn, testified as follows:

11                 DIRECT EXAMINATION

12 BY MS. BLAINE:

13     Q.  Mr. Zicko, could you please state your

14 name, business affiliation, and business address for

15 the record.

16     A.  [ZICKO]  Yes.  My name is John M. Zicko.

17 I'm employed by NSTAR Electric Company, doing

18 business as Eversource Energy.  I'm the director of

19 substation engineering.  My business address is One

20 NSTAR Way, Westwood, Massachusetts.

21     Q.  What has been your role on behalf of the

22 Mystic-East Eagle-Chelsea reliability project?

23     A.  [ZICKO]  I and engineers working for me

24 have been responsible for the design and the
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1 engineering of the proposed East Eagle Street

2 substation, in part some of the cost estimating, as

3 well as the conceptual engineering that was involved

4 in some of the alternatives.

5     Q.  Do you have a document in front of you that

6 has been marked for purposes of identification as

7 Exhibit NSTAR-JMZ-1?

8     A.  [ZICKO]  Yes, I do.

9     Q.  Is that your prefiled direct testimony in

10 this proceeding?

11     A.  [ZICKO]  Yes, it is.

12     Q.  Are there any attachments to that document?

13     A.  [ZICKO]  Yes, there is, Attachment A, my

14 resume.

15     Q.  Was your prefiled direct testimony and all

16 materials identified therein prepared by you or

17 under your supervision?

18     A.  [ZICKO]  Yes, they were.

19     Q.  Were the responses to information requests

20 that bear your name prepared by you or under your

21 supervision?

22     A.  [ZICKO]  Yes, they were.

23     Q.  Do you have any changes to your prefiled

24 direct testimony or other materials provided in this
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1 proceeding at this time?

2     A.  [ZICKO]  I do not.

3     Q.  Do you adopt your prefiled direct testimony

4 and all materials provided in this proceeding that

5 bear your name as your testimony in this proceeding?

6     A.  [ZICKO]  Yes, I do.

7     Q.  Thank you.

8             Mr. Zbikowski, could you please state

9 your name, business affiliation, business address

10 for the record.

11     A.  [ZBIKOWSKI]  Yes.  My name is Richard

12 Zbikowski.  I work for NSTAR Electric, Eversource

13 Energy, as a senior system planning engineer.  As

14 with John, the address is One NSTAR Way, Westwood,

15 Massachusetts.

16     Q.  And what has been your role on behalf of

17 the project?

18     A.  [ZBIKOWSKI]  As the senior assistant

19 planning engineer, my primary role in the project is

20 to determine the need and to determine the

21 solutions, recommendations, and various project

22 alternatives.

23     Q.  Do you have a document in front of you that

24 has been marked for purposes of identification as
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1 Exhibit NSTAR-RCZ-1?

2     A.  [ZBIKOWSKI]  Yes, I do.

3     Q.  Is that your prefiled direct at the present

4 time in this proceeding?

5     A.  [ZBIKOWSKI]  Yes, it is.

6     Q.  Are there any attachments to that document?

7     A.  [ZICKO]  Yes, my resume.

8     Q.  Was your prefiled direct testimony and all

9 materials provided therein prepared by you or under

10 your supervision?

11     A.  [ZBIKOWSKI]  They have been.

12     Q.  Were the responses to information requests

13 that bear your name prepared by you or under your

14 supervision?

15     A.  [ZBIKOWSKI]  They have been.

16     Q.  Do you have any changes to your prefiled

17 direct testimony at this time?

18     A.  [ZBIKOWSKI]  No, I do not.

19     Q.  Do you adopt your prefiled direct testimony

20 and all materials provided in this proceeding that

21 bear your name as your testimony in this proceeding?

22     A.  [ZBIKOWSKI]  I do.

23     Q.  Mr. Bergeron, could you state your name,

24 business affiliation, business address for the
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1 record.

2     A.  [BERGERON]  My name is Marc Bergeron.  I'm

3 employed by VHB.  My business address is 2

4 Washington Square, Worcester, Massachusetts.

5     Q.  What is your position with VHB?

6     A.  [BERGERON]  I'm a senior regulatory

7 specialist and project manager.

8     Q.  And what has been your role on behalf of

9 the project?

10     A.  [BERGERON]  I serve as VHB's project

11 manager on the project, overseeing the project team

12 responsible for environmental impact assessment and

13 environmental permitting associated with the

14 project, in support of Eversource's environmental

15 department.

16     Q.  Do you have a document in front of you that

17 has been marked for purposes of identification as

18 Exhibit NSTAR-MB-1?

19     A.  [BERGERON]  I do.

20     Q.  Is that your prefiled direct testimony in

21 this proceeding?

22     A.  [BERGERON]  Yes.

23     Q.  Are there any attachments to that document?

24     A.  [BERGERON]  Yes, my resume.



 EFSB 14-4, DPU 14-153+154 - Vol. 1 - 1/6/2016

FARMER ARSENAULT BROCK LLC

10

1     Q.  Was your prefiled direct testimony and all

2 materials identified therein prepared by you or

3 under your supervision?

4     A.  [BERGERON]  Yes, they were.

5     Q.  Were the responses to information requests

6 that bear your name prepared by you or under your

7 supervision?

8     A.  [BERGERON]  Yes.

9     Q.  Do you have any changes to your prefiled

10 direct testimony or any materials at this time?

11     A.  [BERGERON]  No.

12     Q.  Do you adopt your prefiled direct testimony

13 and all materials provided in this proceeding that

14 bear your name as your testimony in this proceeding?

15     A.  [BERGERON]  Yes, I do.

16     Q.  Mr. O'Malley, could you please state your

17 name, business affiliation, and business address for

18 the record.

19     A.  [O'MALLEY]  Michael O'Malley, NSTAR

20 Electric Company, doing business as Eversource

21 Energy.  The business address is One NSTAR Way in

22 Westwood, Mass.

23     Q.  What is your position with Eversource?

24     A.  [O'MALLEY]  I am the project manager for
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1 the Station 131 project.

2     Q.  Do you have a document in front of you that

3 has been marked for purposes of identification as

4 NSTAR-MOM-1?

5     A.  [O'MALLEY]  Yes, I do.

6     Q.  Is that your prefiled direct testimony in

7 this proceeding?

8     A.  [O'MALLEY]  That is correct.

9     Q.  Is there anything attached to your direct

10 testimony?

11     A.  [O'MALLEY]  Yes, my resume.

12     Q.  Was your prefiled direct testimony and all

13 materials identified therein prepared by you or

14 under your supervision?

15     A.  [O'MALLEY]  Yes.

16     Q.  Were the responses to information requests

17 that bear your name prepared by you or under your

18 supervision?

19     A.  [O'MALLEY]  Yes.

20     Q.  Do you have any changes to any of your

21 testimony thus far?

22     A.  [O'MALLEY]  No.

23     Q.  Do you adopt your prefiled direct testimony

24 and all materials provided in this proceeding as
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1 your testimony?

2     A.  [O'MALLEY]  Yes.

3     Q.  Thank you.

4             Ms. Berger, could you state your name,

5 business affiliation, and business address for

6 record.

7     A.  [BERGER]  My name is Frances Berger.  I

8 work for Eversource Energy at One NSTAR Way in

9 Westwood, Massachusetts.

10     Q.  And what is your position with Eversource

11 Energy?

12     A.  [BERGER]  I am manager of the sales and

13 revenue forecasting group.

14     Q.  What has been your role on behalf of the

15 project?

16     A.  [BERGER]  My group prepared the substation

17 forecast, the demand forecast, on which the need

18 assessment was based.

19     Q.  Do you have a document in front of you that

20 has been marked for purposes of identification as

21 Exhibit NSTAR-FB-1?

22     A.  [BERGER]  I do.

23     Q.  Is that your prefiled direct testimony?

24     A.  [BERGER]  Yes, it is.
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1     Q.  Are there any attachments to that document?

2     A.  [BERGER]  Yes, my resume.

3     Q.  Was your prefiled direct testimony and all

4 materials identified therein prepared by you or

5 under your supervision?

6     A.  [BERGER]  Yes.

7     Q.  Were the responses to information requests

8 that bear your name prepared by you or under your

9 supervision?

10     A.  [BERGER]  Yes.

11     Q.  Do you have any changes to your testimony

12 at this time?

13     A.  [BERGER]  No, I don't.

14     Q.  Do you adopt your prefiled direct testimony

15 and all materials provided in this proceeding that

16 bear your name as your testimony in this proceeding?

17     A.  [BERGER]  Yes, I do.

18     Q.  Thank you.

19             MS. BLAINE:  The witnesses are ready for

20 cross-examination.

21             MS. SEDOR:  Thank you, Ms. Blaine.

22 Ms. de Boer.

23             BENCH EXAMINATION

24 BY MS. DE BOER:
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1     Q.  Good morning, everybody.  I'd just like to

2 start with some general context questions to focus

3 us this morning, and maybe the rest of the day will

4 be on the need for the project.  I'm wondering if

5 you could please provide a high-level overview of

6 the Chelsea-East Boston-Lynn load area and the

7 transmission system that supplies that area.

8     A.  [ZBIKOWSKI]  Yes, certainly.  The

9 communities as you describe are supported by two

10 major transmission facilities, one coming from the

11 south and one coming from the north.  I'm being a

12 little bit on the vague side because I do not want

13 to reveal some CEII information.  If you need

14 additional information, I'd be glad to provide that,

15 because I do know that.

16             Those two transmission lines comprise

17 supply to this region, which we refer to as Lynn,

18 Chelsea, East Boston.  The sequential loss of those

19 lines, whether they start from the north or the

20 south, will result in the loss of complete supply to

21 the 87,000 customers that are supplied in this

22 region.  That is a significant reliability concern

23 for the transmission system that supports this

24 region.
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1     Q.  With regards to a couple of the specific

2 substation facilities that are supplied by those

3 lines, I know in the petition the company identifies

4 Wakefield Junction as one of the places the

5 transmission supply is from.  Can you tell me where

6 Wakefield Junction is located?  It's Wakefield?

7     A.  [ZBIKOWSKI]  That is correct.  It's a

8 National Grid substation.

9     Q.  And would it be the same for the Lynn and

10 Revere substations located in --

11     A.  [ZBIKOWSKI]  They are in their respective

12 communities, that is correct.

13     Q.  Thank you.  In the petition and in response

14 to information requests, the company has described

15 two needs assessments covering the Chelsea-East

16 Boston-Lynn load area, one being the 2015 need

17 assessment for the Greater Boston area, which was

18 led by ISO New England, and two, the company's own

19 assessment of the capability of its substations

20 within the Chelsea-East Boston-Lynn load area.  Is

21 it correct that these were two independent need

22 assessments?

23     A.  [ZBIKOWSKI]  That is correct.

24     Q.  Are they to some extent complementary?



 EFSB 14-4, DPU 14-153+154 - Vol. 1 - 1/6/2016

FARMER ARSENAULT BROCK LLC

16

1     A.  [ZBIKOWSKI]  They relate to each other,

2 yes.

3     Q.  Could you please describe for me the scope

4 and purpose of each of these two assessments?

5     A.  [ZBIKOWSKI]  The first scope, as we were

6 initially discussing, is the transmission

7 reliability needs to support the customers in this

8 region.  The primary purview of that assessment is

9 ISO New England, and that was also included as part

10 of the Greater Boston study, this particular

11 project.

12             The second aspect is the supply to the

13 NSTAR Electric customers that are directly supplied

14 from Chelsea Station 488.  That was done by NSTAR

15 Electric, specifically myself.  And in that

16 particular case there are various violations of

17 capacity requirements that need to be addressed.

18     Q.  Two different load forecasting

19 methodologies were used for each of these

20 assessments; is that correct?

21     A.  [ZBIKOWSKI]  There is one that relates to

22 ISO New England, and one relates to NSTAR Electric.

23     Q.  At a high level, could you please summarize

24 the load forecasting methodologies that were used in
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1 each of the assessments.

2     A.  [BERGER]  I can take that.  What I can

3 speak to is the internal company's forecast

4 methodology.  I would have difficulty speaking to

5 the ISO methodology.

6             But in terms of the company's

7 methodology, it is based on historical data.  We

8 then run econometric models, regression analyses,

9 incorporating various economic indicators, regional

10 economic indicators, such as employment statistics,

11 per-capita information, that type of thing.  And it

12 is run through the model.  We get a base forecast

13 for the region.

14             We then take that forecast and apportion

15 it to the various substations.  At that point we

16 have a baseline forecast.  We then adjust it for any

17 anticipated energy efficiency.  We then also adjust

18 it for any potential solar, impacts of solar.  So

19 that is a reduction.  And then we do add back

20 specific step load, and those are specific projects

21 of a significant size that we feel will be

22 increasing the load to that substation.

23             So that is our methodology.

24     Q.  And does the company provide information to



 EFSB 14-4, DPU 14-153+154 - Vol. 1 - 1/6/2016

FARMER ARSENAULT BROCK LLC

18

1 ISO New England in support of the development of its

2 forecast that was used in the 2015 needs assessment?

3     A.  [BERGER]  The company would provide that to

4 iso, yes.

5     Q.  Can anyone speak to the type of information

6 that was provided and how that might align or not

7 align with the company's own load forecasting

8 methodology?

9     A.  [BERGER]  I can't specifically speak to

10 that.  I do believe in one of the information

11 requests we did provide the ISO load modeling guide.

12 So basically the process is that my group would

13 distribute that to the system planning group, who

14 would then provide it to ISO.

15     Q.  You mentioned specifically that as part of

16 the company's load forecasting methodology known

17 step loads or specific customer loads are added in

18 to the substation forecast.  Is that step-load

19 information provided to ISO in support of its load

20 forecasting methodology?

21     A.  [BERGER]  That would be provided as part of

22 the -- my understanding is that it would be provided

23 as part of that baseline forecast provided to ISO.

24     A.  [ZBIKOWSKI]  It is included in the
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1 information provided for ISO New England but is not

2 necessarily being identified independently.  So in

3 our particular region of Chelsea, there are four

4 major customer projects that are identified.  When

5 we provide information to ISO New England, they

6 would know that that load is in that region, but we

7 would not have advised them there are four specific

8 projects.

9     Q.  Thank you.  Moving on to the specific need

10 for the project:  The company identified two broad

11 categories of needs for the project:  one,

12 reliability needs related to the Chelsea-East

13 Boston-Lynn load area, and, two, capacity needs

14 related to the Chelsea substation within the

15 Chelsea-East Boston-Lynn load area.  Is that

16 correct?

17     A.  [ZBIKOWSKI]  That is correct.

18     Q.  I'd like to start by focusing on the

19 broader Chelsea-East Boston-Lynn load area need.  If

20 you could please refer to Page 2-1R of the petition.

21     A.  [ZBIKOWSKI]  Yes.

22     Q.  Two subcategories of needs were identified

23 for this load pocket:  one, consequential load

24 interruption of greater than 300 megawatts following
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1 the sequential loss of two area transmission lines,

2 and two, low-voltage violations following certain N

3 minus 1 and N minus 1 minus 1 contingencies of

4 concern.  Is that correct?

5     A.  [ZBIKOWSKI]  That is correct.

6     Q.  Starting first with the load interruption

7 needs specifically.  In response to EFSB-N-11, the

8 company provided a copy of the ISO New England

9 transmission system planning load interruption

10 guidelines as published in 2010.  I'm wondering if

11 you could please summarize for me the process ISO

12 New England undertook to introduce these guidelines,

13 including the 300-megawatt load interruption

14 criteria.

15     A.  [ZBIKOWSKI]  I am not aware of the process

16 at ISO New England.

17     Q.  Was the company a participant in the

18 working group that was developing these criteria?

19             MS. KEUTHEN:  The company has another

20 witness that it could swear in that could respond to

21 that question.

22             MS. DE BOER:  I'm going to have a few

23 questions, I think, on the criteria, so it may be

24 helpful.
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1             MS. KEUTHEN:  Could I ask Mr. Andrew to

2 join the panel for a few moments.

3             MS. SEDOR:  Mr. Andrew, are you all set?

4 Do you need an opportunity to grab the exhibit that

5 we're talking about?

6             WITNESS ANDREW:  No, I'm actually very

7 familiar with the exhibit.  I think I am qualified

8 to answer the question.

9             MS. KEUTHEN:  Perhaps you want to swear

10 him in, and then if we could do a brief direct

11 examination?

12             (Discussion off the record.)

13             MS. KEUTHEN:  Let's go back on the

14 record.  At this time we are going to swear in

15 another NSTAR witness, I believe Mr. Andrew.  If you

16 could just state your name for the record.

17             WITNESS ANDREW:  Robert Andrew.  I go by

18 Bob.

19             MS. SEDOR:  It's Mr. Andrew.

20             WITNESS ANDREW:  Andrew, yes.

21                ROBERT ANDREW, Sworn

22                 DIRECT EXAMINATION

23 BY MS. KEUTHEN:

24     Q.  Mr. Andrew, could you state your business
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1 affiliation, business address for the record.

2     A.  [ANDREW]  I am director of system planning

3 for NSTAR Electric, doing business as Eversource

4 Energy, at One NSTAR Way in Westwood, Massachusetts.

5     Q.  What has been your role on behalf of the

6 project?

7     A.  [ANDREW]  Well, I guess most projects in

8 the Greater Boston area originate from the system

9 planning group.  Mr. Zbikowski is a member of that

10 group.  So in the process of this, it's been

11 oversight and review and approval of scopes and....

12     Q.  Thank you.

13             MS. KEUTHEN:  Mr. Andrew is available

14 for cross-examination.

15             MS. SEDOR:  Thank you.

16 MARC BERGERON, JOHN M. ZICKO, RICHARD C. ZBIKOWSKI,

17      FRANCES BERGER, MICHAEL W. O'MALLEY, AND

18                    ROBERT ANDREW,

19 having been duly sworn, testified as follows:

20             BENCH EXAMINATION

21 BY MS. DE BOER:

22     Q.  I was hoping you could provide a summary of

23 the process ISO New England took to introduce the

24 load interruption guidelines as well as the specific
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1 300-megawatt load interruption criterion.

2     A.  [ANDREW]  You can see by the date on the

3 power plan that was presented at the reliability

4 committee November 17th, 2010, this has been a long

5 and lengthy debate.

6             In general, the ISO tries to establish

7 criteria through developing as broad a consensus as

8 possible with all the participants through the

9 planning advisory committee and/or the reliability

10 committee.

11             One of the major concerns across New

12 England was at what level should the costs

13 associated with the transmission project be

14 regionalized.  And the focus of this power plan was

15 the ISO's initial presentation of their proposal for

16 how that criteria would be set up.

17             There was much debate, both public in

18 the forums, behind the scenes, in different meetings

19 back and forth.  They were never actually able to

20 reach a consensus on what the exact wording of

21 everything would be.

22             What everybody could agree was that at

23 300 megawatts and above, yes, it should be done.

24 What they couldn't agree upon was at numbers below
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1 that.

2             So it has become a de facto standard in

3 terms of how the ISO has published the Greater

4 Boston solution.  If you look at the Greater Boston

5 solutions study, they clearly say any load pocket

6 above 300 -- or there may be one that's 298 -- you

7 know, was included in the scope and was developed as

8 a regionalized project to address this.

9             They have stated at a PAC meeting in the

10 last year that sometime soon this will be

11 incorporated into the ISO's transmission planning

12 guideline document that is a public document on

13 their website.  To my knowledge, that hasn't

14 happened yet.

15             But, you know, when you look at what's

16 in here, the debate came down to a lot of different

17 topics.  You know, I would make the case that 100

18 megawatts of load in downtown Boston has a much

19 wider-ranging effect than 100 megawatts of load in a

20 more rural area.  Now, the people who live in that

21 rural area would disagree with me.  But that's one

22 of the challenges in establishing this standard

23 across New England for -- you know, for everybody to

24 comply with.
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1             But that's where it is today.  At 300

2 megawatts there is no debate any longer in the ISO

3 PAC meetings about regionalizing the costs

4 associated with the transmission upgrades.

5     Q.  Is the focus of the guideline purely on

6 load interruption or the level of load interrupted,

7 or is restoration time a factor as well?

8     A.  [ANDREW]  The focus that was in here was

9 more on the load that was interrupted as a criteria.

10 Now, one of the challenges in this guide is, I

11 always argued I've never had a megawatt call and

12 complain that they were out of service, but

13 customers do, and that part of the criteria should

14 be customers.

15             Now, ISO from their point of view, then

16 their response to that was, "We don't have customer

17 counts.  We don't know those numbers.  We do know

18 megawatts.  So that's something we can deal with."

19             So when you look through this power

20 plan, you'll see in the back pages of it talking

21 about the effect of major outages in urban areas

22 having, you know, bigger impact.  If you have to

23 walk down 50 floors from the top of the Prudential

24 Building, I know it would have a major impact on me
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1 in terms of that.

2             You know, so there are many, many

3 factors when you're making these kinds of decisions.

4 And that's why this has taken so long and it still

5 really hasn't come to full and complete conclusion.

6     Q.  I believe you mentioned that this year

7 ISO's planning to move forward by establishing a

8 planning procedure for this criteria.  Is that --

9     A.  [ANDREW]  There is a planning procedure

10 document that's about an inch or so thick today, and

11 one of the appendices in there that is to be

12 completed deals with load interruption.

13     Q.  Would that be the same planning procedure

14 next step that is referred to in Slide 2 of the

15 presentation, potentially?

16     A.  [ANDREW]  Yes, although when this was done,

17 they had not done what is called a planning guide

18 document yet.  So this was just a reference that

19 when we finalize this we'll put it in a procedure.

20 And so the ISO has planning procedures, you know,

21 specifically entitled that way.  This other document

22 is a planning guideline that's kind of a lower-level

23 document, I think that is easier for them to revise

24 and update.  Planning procedure documents have to go
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1 through a formal review process at the reliability

2 committee and be approved or recommended for

3 approval with votes, where the planning document is

4 something more that staff-level people, planning

5 engineers, would follow.

6             I believe it was created with the idea

7 that we were moving into the FERC 1000 world, where

8 a lot more and different independent people would be

9 performing planning studies.  So it was the intent

10 to give guidance to people that this is how it's

11 done in New England and how the ISO wants to see it

12 done.

13     Q.  So there is a planning guideline, that

14 lower-level guideline, that's been established for

15 this load interruption criteria at this point, or

16 have they decided to skip directly to the formal

17 planning procedure?

18     A.  [ANDREW]  No, I believe the plan is not to

19 put this in a planning procedure.  It's to put it in

20 the planning guideline document.

21     Q.  Thank you.  So despite the fact that the

22 planning guideline has not been established formally

23 at this point, it's the company's position that the

24 300-megawatt consequential load interruption limit
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1 is an ISO New England planning criteria it must

2 comply with; is that right?

3     A.  [ANDREW]  Yes.

4     Q.  Is the company aware of any transmission

5 projects that ISO New England has approved for

6 regional cost recovery that were designed to address

7 consequential load loss of greater than 300

8 megawatts?

9     A.  [ANDREW]  Sure; our Sudbury project.  We

10 have just recently energized a new 230-to-115-kV

11 auto at our Sudbury substation.  And again, it was

12 designed to provide a third source into a load

13 pocket that currently had two sources.  It was, I

14 want to say, 340.  It's off the top of my head.  But

15 yes, it was a load pocket.  It is a project on the

16 regional system project list, and has been approved

17 for regional cost recovery.

18 BY MR. YOUNG:

19     Q.  What was the date on that?

20     A.  [ANDREW]  Well, the auto was first

21 energized in December and placed in service.  And

22 then we still have some control and protection work

23 that's going into 2016, but it's currently in

24 service now.
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1     Q.  Thank you.

2 BY MS. DE BOER:

3     Q.  And the primary purpose of that project was

4 load interruption?

5     A.  [ANDREW]  Yes.

6     Q.  Thank you.  If you could please turn to

7 EFSB-N-19.

8     A.  [ZBIKOWSKI]  Okay.

9     Q.  In this response the company stated that it

10 views the 300-megawatt threshold as a minimum

11 standard and that it believes new transmission

12 facilities are justified to address load pockets

13 even when projected load interruption is less than

14 300 megawatts.  I'm wondering if you could please

15 elaborate for me on this.  I know you did a bit in

16 the prior line of questioning.

17     A.  [ANDREW]  Sure.  300 megawatts was, I'll

18 call it, somewhat kind of an arbitrary number that

19 everybody could agree, well, if it's bigger than

20 300, that's bad, so we have to go address it.  But

21 there are many other circumstances where you have

22 circumstances that can be under 300 and they can be

23 even worse.

24             We recently energized another project,
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1 which was a 115-kV line, on Cape Cod, our 139 line,

2 which was a radial line emanating from our

3 Barnstable substation out the Cape.  The load there

4 I think was on the order of 200 -- in summertime

5 peak, it was under 300.  But the consequences of the

6 loss of the two existing lines in the area meant

7 that an isolated geographic area with only really

8 two or three exit routes had no supply, and we felt

9 it created public safety issues.  We would have

10 difficulty swimming against the tide, trying to get

11 our crews out to fix the problem when people that

12 were out there were trying to leave the area.  And

13 so we proposed the third line for the area, and that

14 recently, I believe, just went in service, in

15 December, also.  And we submitted a Section 72, I

16 think, application, and we were allowed to proceed

17 with the project.

18             So we certainly feel there are cases

19 where you have loads that are under 300 in total and

20 they really should be addressed.

21     Q.  And are those -- or were those cases

22 eligible for regional cost recovery with ISO, or do

23 you have to be 300 or more for ISO to consider --

24     A.  [ANDREW]  For ISO to consider regional cost
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1 recovery, it needs to be 300, or very -- I guess

2 there was a 298 number where they did it.

3             But currently, that is their -- the way

4 they are on a day-to-day basis looking at it, yes.

5 For cost recovery it's got to be 300 or greater.

6     Q.  So in the project you referenced, where the

7 load was around 200 megawatts, that was a local

8 cost?

9     A.  [ANDREW]  That was a local cost.  They were

10 radial lines, so they were not PTF, pool

11 transmission facilities, and would never have been

12 eligible for regional cost recovery anyway.  But,

13 you know, when it's the right thing to do, it's the

14 right thing to do.

15     Q.  So in the case of this project, if the load

16 pocket in question was less than 300 megawatts, the

17 company's position, it's the minimum threshold and

18 should still be addressed.  Does it still anticipate

19 that the costs of the project would be regionalized,

20 or would those be borne by local ratepayers?

21     A.  [ANDREW]  No, this project, the way it is

22 constructed, with a loop feed through, it's subject

23 for regionalization.

24             When we presented this to the ISO and we
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1 presented it at a PAC meeting, the fact that we

2 could solve the regional problem independently of

3 solving the supply of East Eagle Street substation

4 or we could combine them, the most cost-effective

5 way was to combine them.

6             And the general criteria that the ISO

7 has used for all of these has been lowest overall

8 cost.  We're not going to try and push costs in

9 either direction.  We're first going to look and see

10 that your total cost is minimized this way, and then

11 regionalizing versus nonregionalizing, let the costs

12 fall where they may.

13     Q.  Thank you.  You mentioned that some

14 particular load pockets may have greater consequence

15 for -- than others with the same level of load.  I'm

16 wondering if the company believes the nature of the

17 load served in the Chelsea-East Boston-Lynn load

18 area increases the importance or need for

19 transmission facilities that would prevent

20 consequential load interruption.

21     A.  [ANDREW]  Well, it's hard to ever say one

22 customer is more important than another.  But if my

23 family's on a plane that's coming into the city, I'd

24 like to know that, you know, things were good.
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1             So, you know, we're always aware of

2 facilities like hospitals, major transportation

3 hubs, you know, that we respond to storm problems

4 all the time.  So we're always aware of the major

5 public-service facilities -- water, sewer, you know,

6 medical -- around.

7             You know, the truth is, the area has a

8 lot of -- you know, every area has a lot of very

9 critical needs in there, and so does the Chelsea-

10 East Boston area.

11     Q.  Is the nature of the load something the

12 company would advocate that the Siting Board, or ISO

13 New England, for that matter, take into account when

14 considering this project?

15     A.  [ANDREW]  Well, not as a specific, you

16 know, thing.  Again, it kind of goes back to we look

17 at all of our customers as being important.  One

18 customer can be as large as, say, the entire

19 Prudential Building versus, you know, an apartment

20 or a house.  But it's what's the effect on the

21 people in the area, on society in general.

22             You know, in the I hate to say almost 40

23 years I've been in the electric business, the

24 importance of electric supply -- 40 years ago,
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1 electricity was much more of a convenience.  Today

2 it's much more of a necessity in our lives.

3             You know, I do know firsthand from

4 speaking with our customers, they don't want their

5 electricity to go out at all, even for short periods

6 of time.  And so we strive to do the best we can to

7 make them happy.

8     Q.  One of the critical infrastructure loads

9 you mentioned in the Chelsea-East Boston-Lynn load

10 area is the Boston airport; is that correct?

11     A.  [ANDREW]  Certainly.

12     Q.  Now, this question might be going into CEII

13 information, so I'll defer to the company whether

14 it's something you'd rather take as a record request

15 or an answer in a confidential manner.  But I'm

16 wondering if you could please describe for me the

17 size of Logan International Airport load as well as

18 any backup generation this load might have and

19 whether the contingency of concern might be of

20 particular impact to Logan International?

21     A.  [ANDREW]  We do not have any specific

22 knowledge about what MassPort may have for local

23 backup, kind of emergency generators, just as any

24 facility may have those.  We could certainly make
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1 inquiries to find out.

2             But, you know, the nature of their

3 supply we could describe, but I think it would be

4 appropriate if that were in a record request.

5     Q.  Thank you.

6             MS. SEDOR:  That will be EFSB-RR-1.

7             MS. DE BOER:  To please describe the

8 size of the load at Logan International, to inquire

9 whether or not they have backup generation

10 available, information on the company's position on

11 its obligation to serve regardless of whether they

12 have backup generation facilities available, and any

13 particular impacts the N minus 1 minus 1 contingency

14 of concern would have to the airport, please.

15             (Record Request EFSB-RR-1.)

16             MS. SEDOR:  That is asked with the

17 understanding that there may or may not be

18 confidential information involved.  Should there be

19 confidential information, the answer can be set up

20 appropriately.

21     Q.  If you could please consider the types of

22 outages that could cause the N minus 1 minus 1

23 contingency of concern in the Chelsea-East

24 Boston-Lynn load area.  For that circumstance, I'm
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1 wondering if you could please tell me what you would

2 expect the duration of outage to be for customers in

3 the area -- in other words, how long would it

4 typically take for power to be restored to the load

5 pocket following the N minus 1 minus 1 contingency

6 of concern.

7     A.  [ANDREW]  Depending on the type of

8 equipment failure -- the area is supplied by

9 overhead lines, by underground lines.  And then the

10 other types, I guess, broad general categories of

11 failure would be failure of equipment within a

12 substation, breaker failure probably being one of

13 the more severe.

14             Overhead lines, depending on the nature

15 of it, can be as fast as eight hours and as long as

16 eight days, depending on if you've got to replace a

17 tower in its entirety or if you're just fixing a

18 splice or making an emergency repair in the

19 overhead.

20             The key factors there are finding it,

21 mobilizing the -- having the right equipment, and

22 being able to get it there.  Some of our challenges

23 here is that much of the overhead supply to the area

24 is in coastal areas and is across, I'll call it,
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1 swamp -- "salt marsh" maybe is a more appropriate

2 term -- which can present challenges in getting out

3 there.  If they're easier repairs, that can also be

4 done with equipment like a helicopter.

5             The answer I've given so far is very

6 unsatisfactory, because it isn't a hard-and-fast

7 thing.  Sometimes it can be relatively quick, that

8 being in the six-to-eight-hour period, and other

9 times, depending on what has failed, it can be more

10 a matter of one or two days to do it.

11     Q.  Given that part of the transmission supply

12 to the area is by National Grid, would those time

13 lines typically be consistent across transmission

14 companies?

15     A.  [ANDREW]  I would say so.  I think we'd be

16 pretty consistent in that.  We all do the same thing

17 with the same equipment and face the same

18 challenges.

19             Now, on the other side, if it's

20 underground, that is a more lengthy challenge.  Our

21 biggest problem there is, in the overhead you can

22 patrol a line, fly the line in a helicopter, and

23 generally you can see the problem.  In the

24 underground, you have no way to do that.  So now you
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1 end up having to disconnect the ends of the line and

2 use test equipment to find it.  If it's an internal

3 fault in a pipe, then you have to dig on either

4 side, reseal.  We're into weeks and, more

5 realistically, a month, to find, fix, and return to

6 service.

7             So, you know, while underground

8 utilities, they look great because you don't see

9 them, you know, the challenge is always in the

10 repair side that way.

11             Moving into the substation:  The more

12 severe events we have in a substation really would

13 be a breaker failure.  And what happens then is,

14 typically that failure takes two elements out of

15 service.  A breaker tends to isolate two elements

16 from each other.  And both of those elements will

17 go.

18             So again, we have to find it, by getting

19 operators to the substation, diagnose it, isolate

20 it, switch it, and then have confidence to

21 test-energize the other elements around.  And

22 generally speaking, that's anywhere from as fast as

23 two hours to, more realistically, probably eight to

24 ten hours out there to go through it.
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1     Q.  Thank you.  I have a few specific questions

2 about the 300-megawatt limit envisioned in the ISO

3 New England criteria.  Is this limit based on the

4 net load or the load in the area before the

5 contributions of energy efficiency, demand response,

6 and distributed generation?

7     A.  [ANDREW]  Excellent question.  When the

8 numbers were first discussed, load was load.  In

9 power engineer terminology, there was P, which was

10 real power, and Q, reactive power.

11             Now we have P and Q, and then we have a

12 negative load, for energy efficiency, a P and a Q.

13 And we have a negative load for demand response, and

14 another P and Q.  Most recently we've added another

15 negative load for solar into the forecast.

16             What hasn't really been debated when

17 this power plan was placed in service:  "Load" meant

18 the load.  Now we have these other supplemental

19 negative loads, and what really hasn't been debated

20 is what effect that has.

21             My point is, I will go back to the fact

22 that the same number of customers are affected no

23 matter how you tally these up to come to a number.

24 We haven't had that discussion yet, at least in
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1 public.  I have had some private discussions with

2 people saying, "Well, what do you mean now, which

3 one of these?"  And the typical response has been,

4 "That's a good question," back and forth.

5             So the next study that the ISO publishes

6 will have to answer that question.  In fact, the

7 SEMA study, which was near completion -- when

8 Pilgrim announced their retirement, the ISO took it

9 back and said, "We're going to redo it now.  This is

10 a big-enough change in the area."  As part of that,

11 they have also promised to include the solar

12 forecast in their load projections.  So I think we

13 will get to some of that answer hopefully in the

14 next year.

15             For this study, you know, for this

16 project, the answer has been in all the published

17 documents that this load pocket can be addressed and

18 the costs regionalized.

19     Q.  So we talked about energy efficiency, DR,

20 and distributed generation.  What about larger-scale

21 generation, like the GE Lynn substation, a facility

22 that's located within this particular load pocket?

23 Would ISO typically use the net load from the GE

24 Lynn substation for the purposes of the calculation,
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1 or the full 27 1/2 megawatts of load the company may

2 need to supply?

3     A.  [ANDREW]  I believe they've used the full

4 27 1/2, because GE is in a position where they can

5 make a business decision at any point in time to

6 say, "We're not going to do this any more."  And

7 over time, that has happened.  There were periods in

8 time where GE was not generating because it wasn't

9 economic for them to do it and other times when they

10 have.

11             And so they will make a business

12 decision, you know, in pretty much real time, based

13 on the cost of generation and power to their

14 business, you know, to do that.  And we've seen that

15 over time with other companies who have generated.

16 Very often a project has a lifetime, and at the end

17 of that lifetime, the company is then faced with a

18 major capital investment, and at that point in time

19 they may decide, "We're not going to do this any

20 more," and we've seen that happen with other,

21 smaller facilities.  And each business will make the

22 best decision they can for their business.

23     Q.  In response to EFSB-N-19, the company

24 provided some numbers for the area to sum up what
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1 the total load interruption would be in the East

2 Boston-Chelsea-Lynn load area based on the ISO New

3 England 2015 CELT forecast.  I've got some specific

4 questions about that number.

5             The first is whether this is gross or

6 net demand, so the total before or after the

7 contributions of energy efficiency, demand response,

8 DG, or prior to their contribution.

9     A.  [ZBIKOWSKI]  Our response on 19-A advises

10 that it's net demand.

11     Q.  And so the 292-megawatt number reported in

12 response to Part C, is that the 2018 or the 2023

13 load level?

14     A.  [ZBIKOWSKI]  We have on N-19 a value

15 indicating what the 2018 loads were.  In 2018 the

16 forecasted load for this load pocket is 324.2

17 megawatts.

18     Q.  And that was based on the 2015 needs

19 assessment?

20     A.  [ZBIKOWSKI]  That is correct.

21     Q.  If you could please refer to Part C, where

22 the company provides the more recent load levels

23 predicted in the 2015 ISO New England CELT report.

24 And rather than that 324.2-megawatt figure, I
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1 believe the company reports demand within the load

2 pocket would reach 292 megawatts.

3     A.  [ZBIKOWSKI]  Yes.

4     Q.  I'm wondering whether that corresponds to

5 the same 2018 load forecast date or a later load

6 year.

7     A.  [ZBIKOWSKI]  To the best of my knowledge,

8 it is.

9     Q.  Would it be possible for the company to

10 provide the 2023 load pocket demand level as well

11 for the 2015 ISO New England CELT report?

12     A.  [ZBIKOWSKI]  We can research that and

13 provide that information.

14     Q.  I'll make that a record request, please.

15             MS. SEDOR:  That will be EFSB-RR-2.

16     Q.  It would also be great if you could clarify

17 in that number what the treatment of the GE Lynn

18 substation load was and confirm whether or not it is

19 modeled at its full potential load or net of its

20 local generation.

21             (Record Request EFSB-RR-2.)

22     Q.  Focusing on the two numbers, assuming they

23 are for the 2018 load level:  There appears to be a

24 fairly significant decrease between what was used in
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1 the 2015 needs assessment for the size of the load

2 pocket and the more recent ISO CELT report.  I'm

3 wondering if the company could comment on that

4 difference and any impacts it may have on the need

5 for facilities that would prevent consequential load

6 loss in the area.

7     A.  [ZBIKOWSKI]  In EFSB-N-18, Part B, the

8 company advises that we have had to adjust a couple

9 of these numbers because when we were looking back

10 we had determined that several of the demands that

11 were initially included should not have been

12 counted.

13             One of them was a station service load

14 at the generating station, and then another

15 particular load was a load that was restored from a

16 transmission line that would be unaffected by these

17 particular contingencies.  Those are the differences

18 behind them.

19     Q.  Could the company please provide an updated

20 version of the table presented in EFSB-N-19-A, then,

21 correcting for those load numbers, so we have a

22 summary of the 2015 needs-assessment-based forecast

23 for the area minus the loads that were erroneously

24 included?  Are you saying that's already provided in
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1 N-18?

2     A.  [ZBIKOWSKI]  I'm saying in N-18-B we've

3 adjusted that particular number to reflect that.

4     Q.  Thank you.  Still a couple of questions on

5 the inclusion of local generation and energy

6 efficiency in the calculation of the load for the

7 area.

8             Following the N minus 1 minus 1

9 contingency of concern, are there any DG facilities

10 in the Chelsea, East Boston, or Lynn load area that

11 might continue to operate?

12     A.  [ZBIKOWSKI]  No.  They would trip off line

13 upon the loss of the two transmission supplies.

14     Q.  So in effect would the amount of load

15 interruption be higher than reported in response to

16 EFSB-N-19, as that generation can no longer supply

17 customers in the area?

18     A.  [ZBIKOWSKI]  I believe the number that we

19 reflected in EFSB-N-18-B is the correct value.

20     Q.  So it's not the net load in --

21     A.  [ZBIKOWSKI]  I'm saying the generation's

22 been taken out of that.  It's my understanding the

23 generation has been taken out of that equation.

24     Q.  So if I'm looking at EFSB-N-18, Part B, the
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1 chart, it appears to me that the peak demand was

2 adjusted down for active demand response, passive

3 demand response, and energy efficiency, to get the

4 net totals of demand for the area.  Is that correct?

5     A.  [ZBIKOWSKI]  Yes.

6     Q.  And did I understand correctly that,

7 following the contingency of concern --

8     A.  [ZBIKOWSKI]  You would have the distributed

9 generation facilities would not be online.

10     Q.  So in effect --

11     A.  [ZBIKOWSKI]  They would be added back to

12 the load.

13     Q.  And which particular -- which particular

14 numbers should I be adding back in to get the

15 revised total for the amount of load interrupted, to

16 make sure that the company could present a chart

17 that --

18     A.  [ANDREW]  Active demand response would be

19 certainly added back in, because there's no demand

20 to be actively reduced into the N minus 1 minus 1

21 circumstances.

22             The passive demand response I think is

23 also representative of the PV forecast.  I believe

24 I've read that correctly.  So that, again, would be
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1 added back in; whereas the energy efficiency side is

2 basically a reduction of the load for those actions,

3 so that wouldn't be -- would not be added back, I

4 think, if I understand your question.

5     Q.  Yes, thank you.  That is very helpful.

6             Some more detailed number questions.  So

7 if you could please turn to Responses EFSB-N-19 and

8 N-20.  I would like to compare the demand forecasts

9 provided.  Take the table presented in response to

10 Part A of EFSB-N-19:  Is the load level in the

11 Chelsea-East Boston area based on the 2015 needs

12 assessment load forecast --

13     A.  [ZBIKOWSKI]  Yes.

14     Q.  -- assuming 27 1/2 megawatts of load at GE

15 Lynn and removing the two incorrectly and previously

16 included loads.  Is that correct?

17     A.  [ZBIKOWSKI]  The values that you see on

18 the -- looking at EFSB-N-19-A -- and I'm also

19 comparing to EFSB-N-18 -- we can see that the 2018

20 value for the Chelsea number reflects the net

21 demand.

22             I'm going to do the same assessment

23 associated with the Lynn and Revere and try to

24 determine whether or not this reflects what appears
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1 to be a net level.  I need to use a calculator to

2 make sure of that.

3     Q.  So subject to check -- or do we want to

4 take a short break --

5     A.  [ZBIKOWSKI]  I just want to add those

6 numbers up.

7             MS. SEDOR:  Let's go off the record.

8             (Discussion off the record.)

9             MS. SEDOR:  Let's go back on the record.

10     A.  [ZBIKOWSKI]  I've compared the numbers in

11 EFSB-N-18-B and the EFSB-N-19-A, those tables.  And

12 they reflect net demand fairly closely.  There seems

13 to be some round-off in the tables.  The net demand

14 for the Chelsea-East Boston area is exactly the same

15 as listed in those two tables.

16             The Revere-Lynn numbers, though, are

17 slightly different.  The Table EFSB-N-18 indicates

18 for 2019 would be 199.1 megawatts.  When adding the

19 three columns in N-19-A for Revere, Lynn, and GE

20 Lynn, that total sums to 199.4.  Similarly, when I

21 did the same calculation for the 2023 numbers, it

22 was 203.3 versus 203.4.

23             Considering those numbers, I can state

24 that the table in EFSB-N-19-A would be net demand.
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1 So in our previous conversation, whereby if we had

2 lost the two transmission lines into this area, the

3 active-demand and passive-demand numbers would be

4 added back to those particular respective values.

5     Q.  Thank you.

6     A.  [ZBIKOWSKI]  You're welcome.

7     Q.  So sticking with the numbers as presented

8 in this table for now:  As you said earlier, the

9 2018 total for the load interrupted was 324.2 and

10 the 2023 was 333 megawatts.  Is that correct?

11     A.  [ZBIKOWSKI]  Those are correct, yes.

12     Q.  Is the net demand row of Table A needs

13 cases presented in response to EFSB-N-20 the same

14 forecast as presented in this table in response to

15 EFSB-N-19?  The reason I ask, there appears to be a

16 small difference --

17     A.  [ZBIKOWSKI]  There's supposed to be, and I

18 believe in the calculations there's some round-offs

19 that we've had that occurred.  But that was the

20 intent of those responses.

21     Q.  In this case the rounding errors appear to

22 be slightly larger -- is that correct? -- in that

23 we're comparing for, say, 2023 -- never mind.

24 They're pretty close.
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1             For 2018, 324.2 versus 324.9.  So

2 similar range?

3     A.  [ZBIKOWSKI]  They're similar range.  But

4 for N-20, the major adjustments between N-18, Table

5 B, and this table on N-20 is the PV from the 2015

6 CELT report.  That's reducing those values.  So if

7 we look at the very bottom net demand of 323.1 for

8 2018 for the region versus 324.9, which was

9 reflected in the N-18 case, that's just directly

10 related to the solar.  Again, if we lost the two

11 transmission lines, that solar would not be

12 applicable, and the higher value of load would

13 respectively need to be supplied.

14     Q.  So maybe to summarize the conversation

15 we've been having and to put it on the record, I'd

16 like to make a record request from the company, that

17 it summarize its best and most recent estimates of

18 the amount of load that would be interrupted in the

19 Chelsea-East Boston-Lynn load area in 2018 and 2023

20 following the contingencies of concern --

21 specifically outlining the company's assumptions for

22 whether it should be net load or gross load that's

23 used in that calculation, and comparing that to the

24 ISO interruption guidelines.
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1     A.  [ZBIKOWSKI]  Okay.

2             MS. SEDOR:  That will be EFSB-RR-3.

3             (Record Request EFSB-RR-3.)

4     Q.  Still on EFSB-N-19:  The company stated

5 that two key factors drove a difference between 2015

6 actual demand in the Chelsea-East Boston-Lynn load

7 area and the demand forecast that was used for the

8 area in the 2015 needs assessment.  First is a lack

9 of extreme weather conditions in 2015, and second

10 was a delay in two projects that were expected to

11 connect in 2015 but are now scheduled to come into

12 service in June 2016.  Is that correct?

13     A.  [ZBIKOWSKI]  Yes.

14     Q.  The company presented a table summarizing

15 the weather-adjusted historical demand for the load

16 pocket.  I'm wondering what the demand assumptions

17 for GE Lynn were in this data and whether it was GE

18 Lynn's actual loads at the time or whether this

19 reflects their potential maximum load of 27 1/2.

20     A.  [ZBIKOWSKI]  Given the numbers that we

21 reflect on -- I guess you're referring to Table

22 N-19-B?

23     Q.  Correct.

24     A.  [ZBIKOWSKI]  Those were the actual loads
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1 that were provided to us from National Grid.  I

2 would assume, given that particular numbers, that

3 again, they did not reflect the GE load at 27 1/2

4 megawatts.

5     Q.  Could the company please provide an updated

6 table for the historical loads for the area with the

7 weather adjustment reflecting the 27 1/2 megawatts

8 potential substation load for GE Lynn?  I'll make

9 that a record request, please.

10             MS. SEDOR:  That will be EFSB-RR-4.

11             (Record Request EFSB-RR-4.)

12     Q.  Adding that potential load back in, would

13 it be correct to say that the total weather-adjusted

14 demand in the East Boston-Lynn load area was

15 approximately 263, 264 in 2015?

16     A.  [ZBIKOWSKI]  In 2015, you're asking?

17     Q.  Yes.

18     A.  [ZBIKOWSKI]  Adding back GE load?

19     Q.  Correct.

20     A.  [ZBIKOWSKI]  If we go to Table EFSB-N-19-A,

21 you'd have that number, which reflects 250.67

22 megawatts.

23             So given what I've seen between Table A

24 and Table B on our Response 19 -- you asked an



 EFSB 14-4, DPU 14-153+154 - Vol. 1 - 1/6/2016

FARMER ARSENAULT BROCK LLC

53

1 earlier question.  No doubt Table B did not reflect

2 GE Lynn at 227.5 earlier.  So that's what you see,

3 the two differences.

4 BY MR. YOUNG:

5     Q.  Mr. Zbikowski, you said 227.5.

6     A.  [ZBIKOWSKI]  I meant 27.5.

7 BY MS. DE BOER:

8     Q.  A clarification question, then:  The

9 numbers presented in EFSB-N-19-A are the

10 extreme-weather-adjusted historical values?

11     A.  [ZBIKOWSKI]  Those are the actual values.

12     Q.  The difference between what I was looking

13 at in the table presented in Part B is that you've

14 adjusted the historical loads to reflect extreme

15 weather conditions; is that correct?

16     A.  [BERGER]  I believe that's the case.

17     Q.  To clarify where I'm going with this:  I'm

18 looking to adjust the 2015 historical numbers for

19 those two key factors that the company has

20 identified that is the difference, driving the

21 difference between where it expected to be loadwise

22 for the load pocket and where we actually were in

23 2015, so looking to sum across the 2015 weather-

24 adjusted values reflecting the actual potential for
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1 GE Lynn as well as the 2.6 MVA of delayed customer

2 connections, to generate a hypothetical 2015 extreme

3 weather and timely- connection number for what the

4 loads in the area would have been.

5     A.  [ZBIKOWSKI]  In essence, there are multiple

6 things -- there are multiple requests.  One is to

7 add GE Lynn back into this total, which was not

8 reflected in the Table B; then also make the

9 appropriate weather adjustments and add back the

10 load, the major step load.

11     Q.  Correct.  I think the weather adjustments

12 were already made --

13     A.  [ZBIKOWSKI]  On the right-hand side.

14     Q.  Yes.  The reason I'm asking this or where

15 I'm going in this next part of my question is:  If

16 you make those adjustments, and taking subject to

17 check for now that the total amount for the area

18 would be roughly 264 megawatts if you summed the

19 weather-adjusted loads for 2015 and added in 27 1/2

20 megawatts for GE Lynn's potential, which I note is

21 maybe high -- there may be some GE Lynn loads

22 already in this number they were actually using at

23 the time.

24             But if you take the 264 for the time
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1 being, you're adding in another 2.6 MVA of customer

2 connections.  We're looking at roughly 266 megawatts

3 of load for the whole area.  Does that seem

4 reasonable?

5     A.  [ZBIKOWSKI]  For what occurred the past

6 summer, when we did not really have an extreme-

7 weather condition, yes.

8     Q.  I'm using the weather-adjusted 2015.

9     A.  [ZBIKOWSKI]  Oh, the weather-adjusted.

10     Q.  And I guess I should clarify:  The 2.6 MVA,

11 roughly how many megawatts would that translate to

12 for the company's system?

13     A.  [ZBIKOWSKI]  They would be essentially

14 around 2.4, 2.5, because we would be looking at

15 customer loads in that area -- essentially when we

16 supplied them around 98 percent power factor.

17     Q.  So using the 266 for the time being, it

18 appears to me that there's a fairly significant gap

19 between the 2015 extreme-weather-adjusted loads and

20 where the company was predicting loads would be in

21 2018, at the 324 mark.  And I'm interested in the

22 company's position on how big this gap is and

23 whether it's reasonable to assume that gap will be

24 bridged in the next couple of years.
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1     A.  [BERGER]  In terms of the Chelsea

2 substation, so speaking -- I can speak directly to

3 that.  It is our position that in 2015 the weather

4 conditions were much less severe than the extreme --

5 than the extreme forecast would indicate.  We also

6 did have those additional step-load projects that

7 did not materialize.  We explain that in further

8 detail in N-22.  So speaking solely for Chelsea, we

9 do believe that those are factors that, had the

10 weather conditions been more like extreme, would

11 have been higher than reflected here.

12     Q.  So here, though, I am specifically

13 interested in the broader 300-megawatt load

14 interruption level for the Chelsea-East Boston-Lynn

15 area.  I believe by going through the math here of

16 using the weather-adjusted numbers and adding that

17 2.6 MVA back in, we are looking at -- and would it

18 be fair to say that's looking on an equal basis

19 between the 2015 need assessment, 2018 load

20 interruption level, and where we were 2015,

21 accounting for extreme weather and customer

22 requests?  So I'm interested in the company's

23 position on whether that gap between the 2015

24 adjusted load level and the 2018 predicted load
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1 level is reasonable to be bridged in the next couple

2 of years.

3     A.  [ZBIKOWSKI]  We'll have to consult with

4 National Grid, because their loads are Revere and

5 Lynn.  As Fran just mentioned, we just spoke to the

6 Chelsea loads.

7     Q.  So if the company could include in its

8 response an assessment of the growth rate that would

9 be required to bridge that gap and whether that

10 growth rate is reasonable, in the company's

11 opinion --

12     A.  [ZBIKOWSKI]  Again, I think Fran was

13 speaking that if we had the similar type of weather

14 occurrences, with extreme weather, this generally

15 indicates that once in every ten years we expect to

16 see that level -- so if these weather conditions

17 come back, we would anticipate that we would have,

18 again, historically aligned with our previously high

19 loads in this area.

20 BY MR. YOUNG:

21     Q.  I'm kind of -- you haven't said it, but I'm

22 kind of hearing that you don't think your weather

23 adjustment process is working properly, that it

24 sounds like you don't think that, when you do the
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1 weather adjustment, you're not believing the number,

2 you think there's an additional gap in there.

3     A.  [BERGER]  Well, I believe -- and again,

4 referring to N-22.  Weather adjustment at a specific

5 substation is not a normal analysis the company

6 would undertake.  There are issues with that in

7 terms of the forecast being developed by the

8 Boston -- you know, the NSTAR Electric territory,

9 you know, versus specific substations.

10             So in fact, we don't have perhaps 100

11 percent confidence in a weather-adjustment-by-

12 substation methodology, and that was the reason that

13 in N-22 we did in fact apply some historical data,

14 which we believe gives a better representation of

15 the peak loads that could occur at that substation.

16 BY MS. DE BOER:

17     Q.  To clarify the request I've made, though:

18 I would like you to take into consideration the

19 weather adjustment the company has made, so starting

20 from the premise that those weather-adjusted values

21 provided account for 2015's looking like an

22 extreme-weather year.  If there's additional

23 sensitivities the company would want to apply on top

24 of that, I would appreciate those being mentioned in
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1 the response.

2             MS. SEDOR:  I've asked Ms. de Boer to

3 restate in its entirety.  This will be EFSB-RR-5.

4     Q.  So I'd like the company, in consultation

5 with National Grid, to provide a comparison between

6 the 2015 weather-adjusted, to reflect the extreme-

7 weather-condition actual demand in the East

8 Boston-Lynn load area and the forecast 2018

9 load-pocket loads -- or loads for the pocket that

10 were used in the 2015 needs assessment, comparing

11 the gap between those two values and providing

12 information on how high the growth rate would need

13 to be to get from the 2015 number to the 2018

14 number, the reasonableness of that growth rate, and

15 any additional considerations the company would feel

16 provide a valuable explanation or sensitivities

17 around the weather adjustments used in that

18 calculation.

19             I'm not sure if that was any clearer the

20 second time I asked.  I apologize.

21             MS. SEDOR:  Does the company feel clear

22 about what's being asked?

23     A.  [ANDREW]  Let me ask the question:  So

24 based on what actually happened last year, had the
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1 weather been at the 90/10 level, what would we have

2 expected that substation load to be?  That's the

3 number you want to see?

4     Q.  That's the first number.  Thank you,

5 because I did forget to clarify.  I would also like

6 to add in the 2.6 MVA of delayed customer

7 connections.  And then using that as the base for

8 2015, comparing that load level with what was used

9 for the 2018 needs -- or the needs assessment 2018

10 load level, and helping me understand how the

11 company -- or the company's position on the

12 reasonableness of getting between that 2015 level

13 and 2018 load level predicted, the growth rates.

14     A.  [ANDREW]  So I guess last year we created a

15 forecast that -- or say in 2014 we created a

16 forecast that said we believe if we have 90/10

17 weather conditions in 2015, the load will be this

18 number.  Now, we didn't have that.

19             But we now have another year's worth of

20 data that goes into our forecasting methodology.  So

21 if we took that same forecast that was there in

22 2014, to answer your question to say what would it

23 have been at 90/10, the answer would be the existing

24 forecast.  That wouldn't have changed that forecast.
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1             So I guess are we now saying we want to

2 add another year's worth of data into the

3 forecasting methodology and see what that number

4 would be at 90/10 weather conditions?

5     Q.  I don't think that's quite what I was going

6 for.  In response to EFSB-N-19, the company provided

7 the actual loads in the area for 2015.

8     A.  [ANDREW]  Right.

9     Q.  And then at the request of the Board, it

10 adjusted those levels to reflect what they would

11 have been if weather had been 90/10 conditions.  So

12 2015 wasn't a hot summer.  If it was, the load

13 values would have been 110.3, 46.2, and 79.5 at the

14 Chelsea, Revere, and Lynn substations.

15     A.  [ANDREW]  I believe that's what we did.

16 Did we?  Did we take --

17             MS. KEUTHEN:  Could we go off the record

18 for a moment?

19             MS. SEDOR:  Sure.  Let's go off the

20 record.

21             (Recess taken.)

22             MS. SEDOR:  Let's go back on the record,

23 please.

24     Q.  Before the break I think we were discussing
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1 the difference between the weather-adjusted 2015

2 actual loads and the predicted 2018 loads and the

3 gap between those two numbers.

4     A.  [ANDREW]  I think after much consultation,

5 looking at this, I think our response in N-19-B I

6 think has created some confusion; I'll put it that

7 way.

8             I guess one of the things I'd like to do

9 is go back and look at our response to N-22,

10 revised -- and I think it's B -- on December 22,

11 2015.  There's a table.

12     Q.  Yes, I have that.

13     A.  [ANDREW]  And at the bottom of the table it

14 shows that the 90/10 extreme forecast is based on a

15 temperature/humidity index of 86.

16     Q.  Yes.

17     A.  [ANDREW]  So if you look back into recent

18 history, we've highlighted 2011 and 2013 as two

19 years where the temperature/humidity index hit 85.

20 So those are both ones that are fairly

21 representative of a 90/10 day.  I don't know if it's

22 89/11 or whatever, but for the sake of our

23 discussion, we'll look at those two years as actual

24 90/10 load days.
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1             So we have the Chelsea substation load

2 in that table on N-22 revised, but we also have

3 those same loads in our response to N-19-A, and you

4 see those same loads reflected in the table there.

5 So that you can see the Chelsea load between those

6 two years went up just a little bit, and then as our

7 forecast goes forward into 2018 and 2023, you can

8 see, again, the load increases from area load and

9 the swap loads that we've been talking about taking

10 place.  So I think that's kind of the basis of the

11 area load and it moving.

12             Now, in N-19-B, one of our challenges in

13 presenting weather-adjusted data is that it's a very

14 difficult thing to do.  Our load forecasters get

15 very nervous.  And so one of the challenges here,

16 though, or I think one of the questions, is

17 fundamentally, "How good is your forecast?"  Right?

18 I think that's a fair question to ask:  "How good is

19 your forecasting?"

20             And so one of the ways to do that is,

21 after the fact of a year, take a look at just what

22 happened.  And if you look at the table in N-19-B,

23 under 2015 for Chelsea, the actual load was just

24 under 108 megawatts, or MVA.  For the actual weather
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1 conditions inputted into our model and then

2 allocated across substations -- because, again, our

3 forecast starts at the system level; we don't

4 forecast at the substation level -- and allocated

5 across, we would have had a number of 110 in there.

6             So fundamentally, we're at a 2 to 3

7 percent accuracy range, which, given the allocation

8 of loads across multiple substations -- that we take

9 a system-level forecast of close to 5,000 megawatts,

10 allocated across substations based on how it's going

11 to go, I believe that's pretty accurate, given what

12 we're doing.  Unfortunately, this isn't

13 neurosurgery.  It's a little bit more like

14 horseshoes.

15     Q.  So you did just focus on the 2 to 3 percent

16 accuracy level you were just describing.  Were you

17 just comparing the actual demand, the 107.8

18 megawatts, and the 110.3 weather-adjusted?

19     A.  [ANDREW]  Yes.  Now, the weather-adjusted

20 number that's here, my sense is, I think you were

21 looking for us to adjust our actuals up to the 90/10

22 conditions.

23     Q.  Yes, that was the request.

24     A.  [ANDREW]  We kind of went the other way.
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1     Q.  Okay.

2     A.  [ANDREW]  We took the actual conditions,

3 the actual weather, which was not 90/10, and plugged

4 it back into the model and said, "What would that

5 have given us?"  And that would have given us 110

6 versus the 108 that we saw.  So I think we did kind

7 of the opposite of what you asked, in terms of doing

8 it.

9             Now, the problem -- I think the reason

10 that it was interpreted that way was that our model

11 would give what the forecast was for 90/10

12 conditions no matter what.

13     Q.  So to clarify for myself -- and I believe

14 it comes up in a few places -- but I think the load

15 forecast for Chelsea for 2015 was originally 133

16 MVA, and am I correct in understanding that if you

17 had put the inputs, instead of 90/10 weather, to be

18 what the weather actually was in 2015, it wouldn't

19 have been 133, it would have been 110 megawatts of

20 load forecast for the substation?

21             MS. SEDOR:  You're nodding, but it would

22 be --

23     A.  [BERGER]  Yes.

24     Q.  So in effect, the difference between actual
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1 weather and extreme weather drove a difference of

2 roughly 20 megawatts at the Chelsea substation

3 rather than, if I looked at this chart, I thought it

4 was about 3 megawatts of difference was accounted

5 for by extreme weather.

6     A.  [BERGER]  That is correct.

7     Q.  And this reverse process was used for all

8 of the loads in this chart, so adjusting, say, for

9 example, the 2005 actuals versus a 2005 forecasted

10 load level?

11     A.  [BERGER]  It was the same methodology used.

12     Q.  So did the company have to create a

13 backforecast in order to do this of what loads that

14 Chelsea would have been forecast to be in 2005?

15             I understand why you had 2015 forecasted

16 load levels to reverse-engineer.  I'm a bit

17 surprised that you had 2005 forecasted load levels

18 to reverse back to actual weather conditions.

19     A.  [BERGER]  So to clarify:  The previous

20 years we're adjusting based on history.  And you're

21 correct that 2015 was based on somewhat of the

22 forecast level.

23     Q.  So for the other years that were done based

24 on history, can you explain to me how those were
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1 done?

2     A.  [BERGER]  So my understanding is that the

3 actual data was adjusted to a 50/50 forecast, to a

4 weather-adjusted normal.

5     Q.  So if I refer back to the question that was

6 posed in EFSB-N-19 for Part C -- sorry, for Part B,

7 the question that was posed was that the company

8 identified a gap between historical load levels and

9 the electrical demand in the area, and if a key

10 driver for the difference in the forecast was

11 forecast weather conditions versus actual weather

12 conditions, provided weather-adjusted load levels

13 for the historical years.  So are they all 50/50

14 conditions rather than 90/10, or is it 50/50

15 conditions for most of the years with the exception

16 of 2015?  I'm sorry, I'm not sure I understand the

17 assumptions that went into this chart, I guess.

18     A.  [ANDREW]  Neither do I.

19     A.  [BERGER]  I think that we would need to --

20 we would need to confirm --

21             May I go off the record for a moment?

22             (Pause.)

23     A.  [BERGER]  So on the Chelsea Adjusted

24 column, all of those were weather-adjusted to come
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1 back to a 50/50 or average weather.  And I think

2 that that was our interpretation of the question,

3 which I think was incorrect on its premise.

4             So I think as Bob indicated, perhaps

5 what you were looking for in that question was,

6 given the actual data, were we to adjust to a 90/10

7 in all cases, what would that impact have been.  So

8 perhaps that was your question, and we basically

9 misinterpreted it when we answered it.

10     Q.  I thank you very much for the

11 clarification.  I would appreciate a new chart that

12 takes the historical actuals for the East Boston-

13 Chelsea-Lynn load area and adjusts those historical

14 values to reflect 90/10 weather conditions.  And

15 please compare those weather-adjusted totals for the

16 area with, at least for the year 2015, for, I guess

17 Chelsea specifically -- the 2015 -- I'm going to

18 back up, actually.

19             If you could just prepare that chart,

20 that would be wonderful.

21     A.  [BERGER]  May I clarify, though, and just

22 mention that we are reliant on our counterparts at

23 National Grid for Revere and Lynn.  So to the extent

24 that they are able to provide that -- we will need
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1 to consult with them in providing that.  So yes, we

2 can provide the Chelsea.

3 BY MR. YOUNG:

4     Q.  For the NSTAR side, you have a methodology

5 where you can -- some kind of regression where you

6 can take the actuals for given weather conditions

7 and extrapolate what that would have been at 90/10?

8 Is that right?

9     A.  [BERGER]  We will do our best to do that.

10 We will be able to do that --

11             We need to look at the methodology that

12 we will use to do that.

13     Q.  That's kind of my question, is what is your

14 method of doing that?  I just want to make sure you

15 can do that before you take it as a record request.

16 So like a subsidiary question to that would be:

17 Would you take it for the day of your maximum load,

18 and on the day of your maximum load you know what

19 the temperature and the humidity was, and you would

20 extrapolate off of that particular day?  Is that

21 right?

22     A.  [BERGER]  What I would need to do, frankly,

23 is to consult with my forecasting team on the

24 methodology that we would use.  I would feel
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1 uncomfortable telling you at this point.

2     Q.  And then from the National Grid side, would

3 you envision getting raw data and yourselves doing

4 an extrapolation, or would you be asking National

5 Grid to extrapolate what the 90/10 weather-adjusted

6 figure would have been for their peak day, and would

7 your peak day be the same as their peak day?  A lot

8 of questions like that.

9             At what point would you be able to

10 consult with your forecasting team so that we'd have

11 a better idea on that?

12     A.  [BERGER]  If I can go off the record again

13 and if I may consult with my colleague.

14             MS. SEDOR:  Yes.

15             (Discussion off the record.)

16             MS. SEDOR:  Let's go back on the record.

17     A.  [BERGER]  So we would like to review the

18 methodology that we could use to extrapolate to the

19 90/10.  We may use an extrapolation process.  We may

20 in fact use history as proxy.  So, for instance, in

21 2013 we know that the conditions were 90/10, so we

22 may in fact use historical numbers as a proxy to

23 estimate that.  And again, you know, the weather

24 normalization at a substation level, again, you
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1 know, is maybe an imperfect way of doing that, for

2 all the reasons that we've mentioned.

3             The question was, what would we do with

4 the National Grid data.  We would ask them to do the

5 same estimate of 90/10.  We would feel a little bit

6 uncomfortable with taking their raw data and doing

7 the estimation for the 90/10 conditions.

8 BY MS. DE BOER:

9     Q.  I think I'll formally make the request for

10 the chart or record request.  So for the chart that

11 was originally provided in EFSB-N-19-B to be updated

12 to reflect what the weather-adjusted actual demand

13 for the years 2005-2015 would be if 90/10 weather

14 conditions were used; that a Total column be added

15 to the chart as well, please, that sums up the three

16 stations.  Please include the 27 1/2 megawatts of GE

17 Lynn in those numbers as well, and to make sure that

18 it's not double-counted with any GE load that might

19 have already been in that chart.  Please then

20 explain the methodology that was used in the end to

21 calculate those weather-adjusted numbers, and also

22 provide a comparison of the 2015 weather-adjusted

23 total with the 2018 forecasted total and explain any

24 gaps that may exist between 2015 and 2018 and why
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1 the company believes it is reasonable that that

2 difference in load will be achieved between 2015 and

3 2018.  I would also expect that the 2.6 MVA of

4 delayed customer load may be included in that as

5 part of your answer.  Thank you.

6             MS. KEUTHEN:  Just to clarify:  Is this

7 in addition to RR-5, or does this supersede RR-5?

8             MS. DE BOER:  I think it's going to

9 replace RR-5.  I've benefited greatly from this

10 additional discussion on that one.

11             (Record Request EFSB-RR-5 substitution.)

12     Q.  Moving off of EFSB-N-19:  If you could

13 please refer to the response to EFSB-N-13 and N-17.

14     A.  [ZBIKOWSKI]  Yes.

15     Q.  In these responses the company stated that

16 National Grid has some existing and planned

17 distribution switching capability to transfer loads

18 at its substations out of the Chelsea-East Boston-

19 Lynn load area following a contingency; is that

20 correct?

21     A.  [ZBIKOWSKI]  That's what EFSB-N-13 advises.

22 That's what National Grid informed us.

23     Q.  Would this post-contingency distribution

24 switching be sufficient to address the load
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1 interruption need in the Chelsea-East Boston-Lynn

2 load area the company has presented?

3     A.  [ZBIKOWSKI]  After taking approximately six

4 hours of manual switching, which the 86,000

5 customers would be out of service, a small portion

6 of those customers in the National Grid service

7 territory would be restored.

8     Q.  And would that be sufficient to comply with

9 the ISO criteria?

10     A.  [ZBIKOWSKI]  It would reduce the number

11 below 300 megawatts if we assume that the number was

12 324 -- or I guess another number that we had on the

13 previous conversation for 2023 was around three --

14 333 on 2023.  If we assume that number, yes, again,

15 it would drop below 300 megawatts.  But again, those

16 customers would be -- that portion of the customers

17 would be out to that manual switching and only a

18 small portion of the area would be restored.  All

19 remaining customers would still be out of service.

20     Q.  So the ISO criteria, which prescribes no

21 greater than 300 megawatts of consequential load

22 loss, restoring a portion of that after a few hours

23 would not be sufficient to comply with the criteria;

24 is that correct?  Or it would be sufficient?
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1     A.  [ANDREW]  I'm not sure I'm going to answer

2 this right.  I'm not sure how the positive and

3 negative goes.  It would not be sufficient.

4             Generally, what we do take into account

5 is any automated switching.  In a substation, loss

6 of one supply may cause substation automation to

7 pick it up on the other supply.  That's generally

8 within seconds.  And so that does get counted.

9             But if it's manual switching, it is

10 going to take hours.  That's always a challenge to

11 take place.  When you're going into areas that are

12 already in the dark, trying to move crews to switch,

13 the amount of time it takes is very variable.  And

14 so generally that's not counted, you know, in terms

15 of that.

16             The other thing that happens with

17 distribution switching -- and we see it within our

18 own system -- is the capacity you have today is not

19 the capacity you have tomorrow.  If somebody builds

20 a new facility, capacity on that distribution feeder

21 gets eaten up.

22             So the ability to transfer load, usually

23 with time and with load growth, drops.  You always

24 have the challenges of things that are broken and
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1 don't work -- you know, other work that's in there

2 that gets in the way of your ability to do it.

3             So generally, we don't take credit for

4 that, unless it's an automated process at the

5 substation level.

6     Q.  So would it be correct, to paraphrase, in a

7 way that that 40 to 45 plus a bit of extra potential

8 future capability that National Grid may have may

9 help limit the consequences in real time of the

10 contingencies of concern but would not address the

11 need identified?

12     A.  [ANDREW]  Yes, that's an excellent way of

13 putting it, yes.

14     Q.  Thank you.  And that would be true, in the

15 company's opinion, even in light of the lower load

16 levels we've been discussing for the past hours?

17     A.  [ANDREW]  Yes.

18     Q.  Thank you.  If you could please refer to

19 EFSB-PA-23.

20     A.  [ZBIKOWSKI]  Yes.

21     Q.  In this response the company stated that

22 ISO New England recommended a new line between the

23 Mystic and Chelsea substations to address the

24 reliability needs in the Chelsea-East Boston-Lynn
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1 load area identified in the 2015 needs assessment;

2 is that correct?

3     A.  [ZBIKOWSKI]  Yes.

4     Q.  Is ISO New England aware of the change in

5 the amount of load that would be interrupted in this

6 load pocket -- specifically, the additional two

7 loads that were erroneously counted in the total

8 used in the 2015 needs assessment?

9     A.  [ZBIKOWSKI]  Again, we were advised, as we

10 said earlier, that ISO New England was given a

11 specific load at this particular substation going

12 forward.  So in the future our new forecast, we

13 would provide them what these loads would be.  We

14 don't identify whether or not -- what occurred or

15 did not occur if specifically those two major

16 customer projects were deferred.  They would just

17 know there's a load and it's increased or it may

18 remain the same.

19     Q.  So I confess that was a misstatement on my

20 part.  I didn't mean the two specific customer

21 connections.  The two additional substation loads

22 that were included in the total previously, the

23 station service and the --

24     A.  [ZBIKOWSKI]  Yes.
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1     Q.  Is ISO aware of those two loads having been

2 removed from the Chelsea-East Boston-Lynn load area?

3     A.  [ZBIKOWSKI]  That's been corrected.

4     Q.  Does ISO New England continue to recommend

5 a new line between the Mystic and Chelsea

6 substations, given the revised levels of load

7 interruption in the load pocket?

8     A.  [ZBIKOWSKI]  Yes, they have.

9     Q.  Is that documented anywhere specifically by

10 ISO, or purely through the PAC or other

11 understanding?

12     A.  [ZBIKOWSKI]  Purely through the Greater

13 Boston study and continuation of the Greater Boston

14 study, assessments that show the installation and a

15 line from Mystic Station via East Eagle Street

16 station up to Chelsea -- to reinforce this

17 transmission need, reliability concern.

18     Q.  So ongoing work since the publication of

19 the 2015 needs assessment, they continue to

20 recommend the line.

21     A.  [ZBIKOWSKI]  Yes.

22     Q.  Thank you.  Switching to the low-voltage

23 need in the load pocket for a bit:  At a high level,

24 could you please describe the low-voltage needs that



 EFSB 14-4, DPU 14-153+154 - Vol. 1 - 1/6/2016

FARMER ARSENAULT BROCK LLC

78

1 were identified.

2     A.  [ZBIKOWSKI]  When you say low-voltage need,

3 are you referring to the need for an additional

4 transformer to support the NSTAR load in Chelsea-

5 East Boston?

6     Q.  No, still at the broader Chelsea-East

7 Boston-Lynn load area, where there we discussed

8 there were two subneeds within that area:

9 consequential load loss and low voltages across the

10 region.

11     A.  [ANDREW]  The low voltages are on the

12 transmission supply.

13             Basically, the area is a very -- or it's

14 a looped 115 series of lines between two source

15 stations.  When you lose one end -- in this

16 particular case, specifically the end coming into

17 Chelsea from the south -- and the particular

18 contingency is a breaker failure contingency, so

19 what it does is, it drops the transmission supply

20 line and one of the transformers in the substation.

21             So now the substation load is all being

22 fed through two transformers.  The implication of

23 that is that it increases the reactive load drawn

24 from the transmission system, in addition to the
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1 same megawatt load that's there.  Those megawatts

2 are now supplied via a long radial 115 line, 20

3 miles long, basically, to the other -- to the other

4 source station.  And the result is a long 115 radial

5 with a big lump of load at the very end of it, and

6 that causes the voltage drop through the

7 transmission system.

8     Q.  Would the presence of the two large

9 generators in the Chelsea-East Boston-Lynn load area

10 and whether they're operating or not have a

11 significant impact on the voltage levels described?

12     A.  [ANDREW]  I think we have the voltage

13 levels with them both on.

14     Q.  In response to EFSB-N-14 the company stated

15 that because the 2015 needs assessment only assessed

16 2018 and 2023 cases, the first year the low-voltage

17 violations would take place was not identified.  I'm

18 wondering if, based on the study results that were

19 provided in the 2015 needs assessment, whether the

20 company believes that these post-contingency low

21 voltages would likely occur at existing demand

22 levels or if this is likely a future state?

23     A.  [ANDREW]  No, I believe they occur today,

24 frankly.
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1     Q.  In response to EFSB-N-15 the company stated

2 that 341 of the low-voltage violations would be

3 addressed by a separate project at the Chelsea

4 substation; is that correct?

5     A.  [ZBIKOWSKI]  Yes.

6     Q.  That's 341 of a total of how many

7 low-voltage violations?

8     A.  [ZBIKOWSKI]  I believe, to clarify the 341

9 voltage conditions:  They actually are referred to

10 as various breaker phases throughout the system,

11 that they would now be eliminated.  So it isn't

12 necessarily that it's 340 low-voltage points on our

13 system that were being addressed.  No, it really

14 meant that, with this new relocation of the cap

15 bank, there are many other contingencies that are no

16 longer affecting that low-voltage conditions, and

17 that's what it was really trying to say.  Reading it

18 at this time, I can see how you readily interpreted

19 it to say, well, the 340 low-voltage points were --

20 that was not the intent.  That was a misstatement in

21 this case.

22     Q.  I actually did interpret it the way you

23 meant.  What I was wondering there, though, is:  341

24 of a total of how many issues were addressed,
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1 whether they be contingencies or low-voltage points?

2 I'm just wondering --

3     A.  [ANDREW]  I think the number of

4 contingencies that create the problem is on the

5 order of five or six.  The way we get up to 341 is

6 the 37 different dispatches that are in the Boston

7 study.

8             So what happens is, this problem is

9 really independent of any generation dispatch.  It

10 is what it is.  It's the way the system is designed.

11 When the contingency happens under high-enough load

12 levels, you get low voltage.

13             So the 341 number is kind of a

14 deceptively, in my mind deceptively, high number,

15 because there are really just a limited number of

16 contingencies that do it.  I want to say loss of two

17 transmission lines and probably four breaker-failure

18 contingencies create that operating condition I

19 described earlier.  And then the different

20 generation dispatches that the Greater Boston study

21 studied, it's independent of those.  It comes up

22 each time over and over again.  So....

23     Q.  I guess just one point that I'm interested

24 in clarifying still is:  Given that context, 341 of
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1 X are addressed by a separate project.  How many on

2 the same basis are being addressed -- how many

3 low-voltage issues, the same way of calculating, are

4 being addressed by this project or would be

5 addressed by this project?

6     A.  [ANDREW]  About a third of that.

7     Q.  Sorry?

8     A.  [ANDREW]  About a third of that.

9     Q.  So about another hundred?

10     A.  [ANDREW]  Approximately, yeah.

11     Q.  Just a final question on the voltage need

12 identified by the company:  I'm just wondering what

13 the real-time operating consequences would be of the

14 post-contingency low-voltage violations identified.

15 For example, would there be a need to shed load or

16 to change generation dispatch in response?

17     A.  [ANDREW]  Pretty much the only thing as a

18 system operator you can do to resolve this is shed

19 load.  And the most effective load to shed is the

20 load that is furthest away from your source, because

21 you're shedding its losses with it.  Under these

22 circumstances, that would be load at Chelsea,

23 supplied by Chelsea.

24     Q.  Thank you.
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1 BY MR. YOUNG:

2     Q.  A couple of followup questions on what we

3 were discussing this morning:  Mr. Andrew, I wasn't

4 clear from what you said whether this project -- the

5 cost of this project would be regionalized because

6 it's PTF or because the load loss -- you are

7 predicting a load loss of over 300 megawatts.

8     A.  [ANDREW]  Okay.  I guess, first, because

9 it's constructed in a loop, it will be classified as

10 PTF.  But within the ISO cost structure now, you can

11 have PTF components that are not eligible for

12 regionalization any more.  So it will be

13 regionalized -- the costs of this will be

14 regionalized based on that it's included in the

15 Boston study and it's a combined solution of a local

16 supply with a regional problem, solving a load

17 pocket.

18     Q.  So, in a way, you've wrapped in the new

19 substation into a looping project; is that right?

20     A.  [ANDREW]  Yes.

21     Q.  Is there an avenue that ISO would be able

22 to split off the difference in cost between the cost

23 of the looping project -- I mean, you said that they

24 want to minimize total cost.
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1     A.  [ANDREW]  Yeah.

2     Q.  But I could imagine they could try to

3 reduce total costs but then also hive off part of a

4 cost, which would be the differential cost, if, say,

5 the ISO believed, as a hypothetical --

6             If ISO believed that it was less than

7 300 megawatts that you were solving, is there an

8 avenue that they could split the total cost of the

9 project up and regionalize for the looping part but

10 not for the substation?

11     A.  [ANDREW]  Well, yeah, I mean, the ISO is

12 the ultimate authority, if you will, on what costs

13 are allowed to be regionalized, with any ISO

14 participant having the ability to appeal to FERC for

15 an overrule, if you will, based on the fact that

16 they didn't follow the tariff rules.  But in the

17 worst case, with --

18             Well, I guess if they looked at it and

19 said this does not meet the 300-megawatt criteria

20 any more, then from their point of view a line

21 from -- a second line into Chelsea, let's say, would

22 not be a regional project any more.

23     Q.  So none of the project would be

24 regionalized if that's what they thought.
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1     A.  [ANDREW]  At that point in time,

2 fundamentally, yes.

3     Q.  Thank you.

4     A.  [ANDREW]  I can go back, though.  They

5 would still have the problem of solving the voltage

6 issue there.

7     Q.  And that's not subject to the 300-megawatt

8 cutoff.

9     A.  [ANDREW]  No.  That's a system operating

10 limit criteria that they have to maintain.

11     Q.  So you've improved my question:  If ISO

12 thought that the voltage correction was the only

13 thing that -- because if ISO thought there was less

14 than 300 megawatts, hypothetically, and so therefore

15 they thought the voltage issue was the only thing

16 that they wanted to cover on a regional basis, do

17 they have an avenue for doing a cost differential

18 and saying the East Eagle substation is not required

19 for the voltage and so localize the difference in

20 costs?

21     A.  [ANDREW]  Yeah, I guess it would come down

22 to --

23             What the ISO's traditionally done, if

24 there was an issue between regionalized and local



 EFSB 14-4, DPU 14-153+154 - Vol. 1 - 1/6/2016

FARMER ARSENAULT BROCK LLC

86

1 costs, they would say, "You can regionalize the

2 portion of your -- the lowest amount to solve the

3 problem."  And so they would say, okay, if you built

4 a single line straight, instead of looping it

5 through East Eagle you built it straight, and

6 that's, you know, $10 million, where going the other

7 way is $15 million, you may regionalize 10, you

8 know, as the lowest cost.

9     Q.  Thank you.  My other question was:  Maybe

10 this afternoon I think you said there was a 3

11 percent accuracy in load forecast.  Do you remember

12 a discussion of that?

13     A.  [ANDREW]  Yes.

14     Q.  First off, do you really mean there's 97

15 percent accuracy and 3 percent inaccuracy?

16     A.  [ANDREW]  No, I meant that data point --

17 for 2015, that data point, you know, is a check.

18             I have the same question, also, of our

19 own load forecasts:  You have a forecast, and your

20 automatic question is always, "How good is it?  Are

21 we hanging our hat on something that's really

22 plus/minus 50 percent, or are we hanging our hat on

23 something better?"

24     Q.  So that particular data point was plus or
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1 minus 3 percent.  Is that what you were saying?

2     A.  [ANDREW]  Yes.

3     Q.  And was that -- if we're going to use that

4 as -- I mean, it's just one data point, but you're

5 still using that as just a suggestion of how

6 accurate you are; correct?

7     A.  [ANDREW]  Yes.  You know, that's -- you

8 know, I, too, am searching for a method to show --

9 you know, to show others how accurate our

10 forecasting is.  It's a legitimate question that,

11 you know, people ask time and again.  So trying to

12 find a way to do that I think would be helpful to us

13 and to others.

14             So that was just kind of a topic that

15 came up as we were trying to clean up the answer.

16     Q.  I would definitely like to do that at some

17 point, and I didn't organize for it so much this

18 time.  But that 3 percent, was that a prediction

19 from one year ahead?

20     A.  [ANDREW]  Yes, it was our actual data in

21 2015, our peak load, at the weather conditions that

22 existed -- when you put those into our forecast, not

23 the 90/10 conditions, our forecast I think said 110,

24 and the actual was 108 or 107.
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1     Q.  But the forecast was from that year or the

2 year previous?

3     A.  [ANDREW]  Yes.  It was actually the current

4 forecast that we have in place today.  We redo our

5 forecasts yearly.

6     Q.  So if you compared the actual number to

7 what you had forecast maybe -- your yearly forecast

8 from five years earlier, you would get a different

9 figure, maybe more than 3 percent?

10     A.  [ANDREW]  That's entirely possible.  It's

11 also possible that it moves.  I would probably

12 expect it would bounce around to some extent.

13 BY MS. SHAPIRO:

14     Q.  In terms of forecasting and trying to look

15 back historically, actual versus what was forecast,

16 does the company usually have numbers for like by a

17 service area?  There's a problem here because we're

18 looking at substations?

19     A.  [BERGER]  I think, you know, that the

20 forecast is done by service territory.  So that is a

21 correct statement.  So that's kind of the

22 methodology done at the service-territory level.

23 You know, where some of the difficulty arises is

24 trying to, you know, apportion that into specific
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1 substations -- if that answers the question.

2     Q.  I guess I'm wondering:  So this territory,

3 the three substations that we're talking about, that

4 doesn't encompass one service territory; right?

5 There's more?

6     A.  [BERGER]  On the -- so on that question

7 that we were looking at, that incorporated some of

8 National Grid service territory.  So a portion of

9 that was the NSTAR Electric territory for the Boston

10 Edison territory, what that encompasses.  But also

11 in that question were substations that are under

12 National Grid.

13     Q.  So does the company have historically

14 percentages, just for your own personal knowledge,

15 from year to year, in, let's say, the service

16 territory that may have some of this included,

17 that's NSTAR's -- Eversource's service territory,

18 what your forecasting is versus the actual?  Are you

19 off 5 percent, 3 percent, 10 percent?  Do they have

20 those kind of numbers?

21     A.  [BERGER]  I frankly would need to check if

22 we have done that type of analysis previously.  I do

23 know that we were in fact looking, as part of this

24 information request, at this Chelsea substation.  We
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1 were looking at this kind of history.  And I think

2 comparing recent history from 2008 on, with the

3 exception of 2015, which was an anomaly in terms of

4 90/10, we were in fact plus or minus 5 percent.  But

5 does the company do that routinely?  It does some

6 measure of that.  You know, it's not a standard

7 procedure, but we do do some measure of that.

8     Q.  And so the plus or minus 5 percent is based

9 on the chart that you gave us in N-18, or 19?

10     A.  [BERGER]  It was actually CF-44, so it was

11 actually the Channel Fish-44.  It was in a response

12 to one of those questions.

13     Q.  Okay.  So couldn't we look at --

14             So doesn't this forecast also -- doesn't

15 CF-44 also show you that EFSB-N-19, the weather-

16 adjusted, was not using the 90/10?

17     A.  [BERGER]  It does indeed.  Yes, it does.

18     Q.  But that any of these 90/10 extreme

19 forecasts, except for maybe 2013 and 2011, those

20 are -- sort of reflected what the actual demand was?

21 I'm looking at the Chelsea, because this is the only

22 one that --

23     A.  [BERGER]  Exactly, exactly.  So this is a

24 comparison of the 90/10 forecast versus the actual
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1 summer peak.  The years 2013 and 2011 were

2 reflective of extreme weather, so those are in fact

3 fairly close.  But this does indicate that, in

4 general, for those years indicated here, we were a

5 plus or minus 5 percent.  It does further indicate

6 that 2015, when the less-than-extreme weather

7 conditions were in place, you know, it was

8 significantly different from that.

9     Q.  And also, this is also in MVA, and N-19 is

10 in megawatts?  I don't understand why some of the

11 numbers are different in the two charts.

12     A.  [ZBIKOWSKI]  That's correct.  Generally,

13 the numbers in EFSB-N-19 are in megawatts, just to

14 be more consistent with what ISO New England

15 typically reflects.  They're load numbers in

16 megawatts.  While in comparison with loads in

17 substations within NSTAR, we use MVA.

18     Q.  So CF-44 is showing the difference, the

19 percentages, that you -- that if you used a 90/10

20 and your summer peak, were based on MVA.

21     A.  [ZBIKOWSKI]  Yes.

22     Q.  Whereas, it's hard to tell for what --

23             Would it be the same as the megawatt

24 chart that we're looking at in N-19?  The
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1 difference -- should they be the same percentage?

2     A.  [BERGER]  So the N-19 -- so you're

3 referring to the chart in N-19-B?

4     Q.  Actually, I'm sorry, to follow upon:  Based

5 on one of the record requests that Ms. de Boer

6 asked, we are going to now know what the 90/10 is

7 for the chart on N-19.

8     A.  [BERGER]  I'm sorry, repeat that one more

9 time.

10     Q.  We will, once we get an answer to a record

11 request, we will know what the 90/10 is for N-19.

12     A.  [BERGER]  Yes.

13 BY MS. DE BOER:

14     Q.  If I could just add an additional record

15 request based on the response to CF-44:  When the

16 company does have the 90/10 weather-adjusted

17 historical demand for Chelsea, if it could please

18 provide an updated differences percentage between

19 the forecast column and that weather-adjusted actual

20 column in CF-44, so that we can have the percentages

21 based on the weather-adjusted rather than the

22 actuals, as well.  Thank you.

23             MS. SEDOR:  That will be EFSB-RR-6.

24             (Record Request EFSB-RR-6.)
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1 BY MR. YOUNG:

2     Q.  Ms. Berger, I would like to design what's

3 probably going to be a record request, and it has to

4 do a little bit with what Mr. Andrew said about --

5 it sounded like he didn't know what the accuracy has

6 been over the years.  So if you would take out a

7 piece of paper, and I'm going to do a little grid,

8 and we will talk about that and try to put --

9             So 10 columns and 10 rows.  You have

10 lined paper; you're halfway done.

11     A.  [BERGER]  All right.

12     Q.  It doesn't matter too much whether these

13 are rows or columns.  You have something like a

14 10-by-10, a conceptual 10-by-10 grid?

15     A.  [BERGER]  I do.

16     Q.  Then draw a diagonal across it, because we

17 don't need the lower right half of it.

18     A.  [BERGER]  I'm sorry?

19     Q.  A diagonal from lower left to upper right.

20     A.  [BERGER]  Okay.

21     Q.  And then the column headers would be 2006

22 forecast, 2007 forecast, all the way over the 2015

23 forecast.  The rows would be -- the first row would

24 be same year, the next year would be one year out,
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1 the next row would be two years out, down to, I

2 guess, it's nine years out -- nine or ten, however

3 it works out.  And then in each block, what I would

4 like to know is the percentage off that the forecast

5 was.  So this is going back ten years:  How accurate

6 have the forecasts been in the near future versus

7 the far future out to ten years.

8             I'm not -- I want to take out the

9 weather variations from this table.  You want to

10 weather-adjust -- and I think it doesn't matter,

11 from our previous confusion, whether you adjust your

12 actuals to what it would have been in 90/10 or

13 whether you compare your actuals to what you would

14 have -- what the previous forecast would have been

15 for that actual temperature and humidity.  Are you

16 following so far?

17     A.  [BERGER]  I am.  Just a question, though:

18 Are you talking about the territory forecast or the

19 Chelsea forecast?

20     Q.  That's exactly the one other thing I had on

21 here.  I don't know really which one is -- I would

22 be happy probably with either one.  If your data

23 is -- are your data better for the service

24 territory?
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1     A.  [BERGER]  Yes.

2     Q.  Had you made predictions for -- would you

3 have made --

4     A.  [ZBIKOWSKI]  "Did you make."

5     Q.  Thank you.  Did you make forecasts for

6 Chelsea substation for each of those ten years?

7     A.  [BERGER]  I frankly am not certain, because

8 I have not been in the position for ten years.  I

9 also know that when we were pulling together the

10 data for CF-44, we had difficulty accessing --

11 getting the data prior to 2008.  Would it be

12 acceptable for us to start in 2008?

13     Q.  Yeah, if you don't have them, let's make

14 it -- let's start with 2008, so then it's about

15 eight columns and eight rows, or however that works

16 out.

17     A.  [BERGER]  Okay.

18     Q.  If you could do it, I think it might be

19 instructive to see what -- if the accuracy for the

20 service territory and the accuracy for one

21 particular substation is different, that would be

22 kind of educational.  So to the extent you can do

23 it, could we do it for --

24             So the service territory is the old
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1 Boston Edison service territory; is that right?

2     A.  [BERGER]  Yes.

3     Q.  And the substation would be maybe the

4 Chelsea substation.  Maybe there's some wrinkles

5 about moving distribution or something.  I don't

6 know.

7     A.  [BERGER]  I would just like to clarify:  We

8 did make the point that weather-adjusted at the

9 substation level, you know, is a little bit of an

10 imperfect science.

11     Q.  Yeah.  I mean, the request is for, I guess,

12 two tables:  one for the service territory and one

13 for the Chelsea sub.  And, you know, if it turns out

14 that the accuracy at Chelsea sub is a lot different

15 from the service territory and you think part of the

16 reason is that -- the weather adjustment is part of

17 the reason --

18             Feel free to discuss as part of your

19 answer, discuss what it is.

20             And it may be that some of your early

21 forecasts are all in one direction because of the

22 recession.  In my mind, I'm kind of looking at the

23 absolute value of the inaccuracy, rather than

24 fishing for a direction to that.  I'll just say
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1 that.  But you might as well report it as whether

2 it's plus or minus.

3             Does that question make sense to the

4 panel, and are there any other questions or

5 improvements we could make to that?

6     A.  [ANDREW]  I think we do know of a

7 distribution retirement, I think, in about 2008 to

8 2009.  We'll determine when that was and put notes

9 to explain some things of that nature.

10     Q.  If, even better, you can correct for it --

11 if you can correct for it and then say you did the

12 correction, that would be great.  If you can't, then

13 just mark it.

14             MS. SEDOR:  That will be EFSB-RR-7.

15             (Record Request EFSB-RR-7.)

16 BY MS. SHAPIRO:

17     Q.  I just have one quick question.  Earlier on

18 Ms. de Boer asked you about whether ISO was aware of

19 the change, the amount of load that would be

20 interrupted, and you said that there's ongoing work

21 and assessment since the 2015 needs assessment was

22 published.  Can you just elaborate a little further

23 on how that works?

24     A.  [ANDREW]  Sure.  The next step, I guess, in
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1 the ISO process, if you will, is once, first, the

2 Greater Boston needs assessment was completed and

3 published and discussed at the PAC.  Then we moved

4 to the solutions report, and again, that was

5 discussed at the PAC and finalized and issued.

6             That then authorizes the participants,

7 ourselves and National Grid in this case, to move

8 forward with the projects.  And we do that on two

9 fronts.  One is through the siting approval process

10 that we're here on now, and you've seen the

11 Merrimack Valley reliability project has been

12 submitted to the Department, also.

13             But then at the same time within the ISO

14 we move on to what's referred to as I.3.9

15 evaluation, which is a more detailed evaluation of

16 the system per the ISO planning criteria, that shows

17 the individual changes to the system will do no harm

18 to the overall thing.

19             So we've done a high-level needs

20 assessment, a high-level solutions report.  Now

21 we're into the detailed studies.  And we cannot

22 physically change the system until the I.3.9 or

23 proposed plan and application study is complete and

24 been approved throughout the ISO process.
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1             So in parallel with being here for

2 siting approvals on the various parts of the

3 project, we also have study teams working on

4 finalized stability analysis, switching transients,

5 thermal and voltage analysis through the system for

6 all the system in detail.

7     Q.  So what you're working on now and what you

8 presented to ISO in the process that you're

9 currently in, that reflects the amount of load that

10 would be interrupted in the load pocket, the change

11 in the amount of load?

12     A.  [ANDREW]  Yeah.  The study that's done for

13 I.3.9 is a single snapshot of the system in the year

14 that the changes will be put in place.  So I think

15 it's a 2018 case, and the system is being studied

16 in -- you know, in more detail as we go through it.

17             Now, the ISO staff is aware of the load

18 changes, and their concern is strictly that the load

19 is still above 300 megawatts at the 10-year, the

20 2023 case, that that is within their threshold to

21 say "we address it."

22 BY MS. DE BOER:

23     Q.  With regard to the I.3.9 study:  Would the

24 company usually have had that study complete with
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1 ISO prior to filing an application, or is it typical

2 practice to do those in parallel?

3     A.  [ANDREW]  No, it's typical practice to do

4 them in parallel.  The solutions study that's been

5 done is usually very complete.  Generally we haven't

6 gotten into the stability analysis at that point.

7 That's usually the thing that takes longer and is

8 still sitting there.

9     Q.  And do you have a sense of how much longer

10 it will be before the I.3.9 is complete for this

11 project?

12     A.  [ANDREW]  Well, I was going to say, my

13 staff assures me we'll be in the March reliability

14 committee.

15     Q.  Thank you.

16     A.  [ANDREW]  Yeah, I think the study's

17 ongoing.  We're in the middle.  We have drafts of

18 various parts of the study in review with ISO staff

19 and other participating utilities, with their staff

20 also.  And right now we expect to be before the

21 reliability committee in March.

22     Q.  Did they have any issues or concerns come

23 up through that process with regard to the project?

24     A.  [ANDREW]  No.  I mean, a lot of what we're
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1 trying to work out now is the details of how to do

2 construction.  You know, unfortunately, when you add

3 to the system, you usually have to tear it apart for

4 certain periods of time.  There's a lot of projects

5 in the Greater Boston area, so we can't just go do

6 them all at the same time, so we're trying to figure

7 out how to sequence the work.

8     Q.  Thank you.

9             MS. SEDOR:  Let's go off the record.

10             (Recess for lunch.)

11             MS. SEDOR:  Let's go back on the record.

12     Q.  Over the break we came up with a couple of

13 additional topics along the lines of the topics this

14 morning, and then after that I'd like to move to the

15 Chelsea substation capacity-specific substation

16 need.

17             One of the things we were discussing was

18 that, in the absence of the 300-megawatt criteria

19 for the load pocket, there would still be the low-

20 voltage needs that would need to be addressed in

21 that area.  Would the new line be the most cost-

22 effective way of addressing those voltage needs, or

23 would an alternative transmission solution

24 potentially be preferred if you were focusing purely
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1 on that specific need?

2     A.  [ANDREW]  We did not investigate ways to do

3 it separate from the line.  But, I mean, the typical

4 tools you would use for that, first, would be

5 capacitor banks.  We already have a capacitor bank

6 there, both on the distribution buses and the

7 transmission bus.

8             It would potentially require a fast-

9 acting device, so that we couldn't use a capacitor

10 bank.  It would have to be something like a STATCOM,

11 or a static VAR compensator, that monitors the

12 system constantly and goes in.  And again, we would

13 have the challenge of where would we locate it

14 there.

15             So we haven't figured it out.  There

16 isn't a simple solution, but we hadn't figured it

17 out because we thought we had a two-fer level

18 solution, one that killed two birds with one stone,

19 so to speak.  But it wouldn't be a quick-and-dirty

20 solution.  I don't know that it would be as

21 expensive as the project as a whole, but....

22             Chelsea doesn't have the space for any

23 facilities, so it would have to be located somewhere

24 else and then tied in to the transmission system,
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1 which if the project wasn't built, this would be a

2 space available.  But it would be a substantial

3 construction project.

4     Q.  So fair to summarize that, while a detailed

5 review of such an alternative wasn't undertaken, it

6 would likely be difficult to implement?

7     A.  [ANDREW]  Correct.

8     Q.  And relatively costly compared to other

9 typical capacitor bank installations?

10     A.  [ANDREW]  Yes.

11     Q.  Cost maybe on the scale of the project or

12 order-of-magnitude estimate?

13     A.  [ANDREW]  Certainly in the -- the static

14 VAR compensator we put in at our Barnstable

15 substation was a $25 million expenditure ten years

16 ago.  So it would certainly be an expensive

17 solution, yes.

18     Q.  Turning back to EFSB-N-19:  I know we

19 discussed the record request that will come along

20 with this, so the specific Revere and Lynn

21 substations, that these are National Grid

22 substations and that you will need to speak to them

23 about the specific load levels there.  Is that

24 correct?
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1     A.  [BERGER]  Yes.  Oh, yes, it is, absolutely.

2     Q.  I would just like to draw your attention to

3 the load levels reported for 2015 for specifically

4 the Revere substation, acknowledging that these are

5 the actual loads that occurred in 2015, and the

6 difference between that 2015 load level of 42.4

7 megawatts and the 2018 predicted of 72.9 megawatts.

8             When the company is preparing the

9 record-request response on the gap between the 2015

10 and the 2018 forecast numbers, if it could please

11 also explain why National Grid thinks it's

12 reasonable that this particular substation is almost

13 doubling in size between 2015 actuals and 2018, that

14 would be very helpful.

15     A.  [BERGER]  We can make that request of

16 National Grid.

17     Q.  Given that that difference in load is about

18 30 megawatts here and we're potentially talking

19 about being about 30 megawatts or within that range

20 to reach over the 300-megawatt limits, I think it's

21 important information for us to have.

22 BY MS. SHAPIRO:

23     Q.  Also in that -- because if you notice,

24 historically the Revere load isn't close to that,
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1 where the Lynn one seems to vary, and closer to

2 that.  So specifically if they could address that

3 historical --

4     A.  [ZBIKOWSKI]  So the focus in National

5 Grid's questions is really Revere?

6     Q.  If they could also answer somewhat for the

7 Lynn.  But I think the Lynn shows some historical

8 precedents where you had reached that load, where

9 the Revere looks like a different issue.

10     A.  [ZBIKOWSKI]  Uh-huh.

11     Q.  So if you wanted to add a little bit about

12 the Lynn, that would be fine, too.

13 BY MS. DE BOER:

14     Q.  Not looking to take anything away from the

15 prior request, but just adding on that this is

16 something -- I would appreciate some additional

17 clarity specifically on this point as well, beyond

18 what you might have provided, as an additional

19 request.

20             If you could please refer to the

21 petition at 2-14.  The company identified two

22 capacity needs at the substation -- at Chelsea

23 substation, that is -- one, substation transformer

24 loads exceeding 75 percent of their normal rating
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1 under N minus 0 conditions; and two, substation

2 transformer loads approaching or exceeding their

3 long-term emergency, or LTE, rating after the

4 substation's automatic bus restoral, or ABR, scheme

5 has operated in response to an N minus 1 contingency

6 involving the loss of a bulk substation transformer.

7 Is that correct?

8     A.  [ZBIKOWSKI]  That is correct.

9     Q.  With regard to the criterion governing

10 loading in excess of 75 percent of the transformer

11 normal rating:  Could you please explain to me the

12 significance of the 75 percent level?

13     A.  [ZBIKOWSKI]  I'm referring back to the

14 actual -- one of our appendices, which is the

15 SYSPLAN-010.  Specifically, I'm on Page 11 of that

16 document.

17             It states on that document, when -- the

18 reference there that I'm saying, the bulk

19 distribution transformer loading, loading up at 75

20 percent of the normal rating.  It goes on to state

21 that, under note 1, when determining the LTE rating

22 of our transformer line, a 75 percent preload

23 condition is assumed.  So that's the 75 percent

24 number and why we reference it at this point in
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1 time.

2             And so it goes on further to state in

3 this document, in order to be able to protect the

4 capability, in order to be able to use the full

5 capability of the LTE, the normal loads should be

6 restricted on a transformer, not to exceed 75

7 percent of that normal rating.  If we don't, then

8 essentially we're going to take away from the

9 long-term emergency rating.

10     Q.  Thank you.  Would exceeding this criterion

11 alone be sufficient for the company to proceed with

12 a project to increase capacity at a substation?

13     A.  [ZBIKOWSKI]  If there are no other

14 abilities to put mitigation options, meaning can I

15 move the load from one station to an adjacent

16 station?  If those have been ruled out because they

17 can't be accomplished or the other transformers are

18 too heavily loaded, the answer is yes.

19     Q.  So in the case of this particular project,

20 absent the need for additional capacity for

21 post-contingency concerns, would the company -- is

22 it the company's position that a new additional

23 capacity is required for N minus 0 conditions as

24 well?



 EFSB 14-4, DPU 14-153+154 - Vol. 1 - 1/6/2016

FARMER ARSENAULT BROCK LLC

108

1     A.  [ZBIKOWSKI]  Yes.

2     Q.  Are you aware of any projects where the

3 company has invested in additional substation

4 capacity purely for the 75 percent N minus 0

5 conditions?

6     A.  [ZBIKOWSKI]  To date, they both have

7 aligned, whereby the 75 percent value -- because we

8 usually have multiple transformers at a station.

9 When we exceed the 75 percent number, we have

10 generally also exceeded the LTE rating for the loss

11 of one of the transformers.

12             So we haven't had the condition yet

13 where there it is, that we've exceeded 75 percent;

14 but if we had violated the 75 percent, we would

15 actually undergo a project to address that need --

16 first of all, starting with the least expensive,

17 hopefully transfer loads.  If not, if we couldn't do

18 that, we'd have to find a way to add additional

19 transformation at that substation or another

20 substation or build a new substation.

21     Q.  So in this case, again, it's the company's

22 position there is no transfer capability; is that

23 correct?

24     A.  [ZBIKOWSKI]  That is correct.  This is
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1 essentially an island within our particular region.

2 There is no capability between Chelsea and any other

3 substation, given that Chelsea substation 488

4 supplies Chelsea and East Boston, generally

5 surrounded by water or by National Grid.  So there's

6 no ability for us to transfer load to other

7 substations that are within our service territory.

8     Q.  And it may have been EFSB-N-10 -- I

9 apologize if this isn't the right reference.  But in

10 a response to one of the information requests, the

11 company provided the first date that the 75 percent

12 level was exceeded, and that has been exceeded under

13 past loading levels.  Is that correct?

14     A.  [ZBIKOWSKI]  Yes.  The actual reference to

15 that particular question was N-8.

16     Q.  Thank you.

17     A.  [ZBIKOWSKI]  And on July 19th, 2013,

18 Transformer 110 C at Chelsea station -- I'm just

19 reading from the request, or summarizing from this

20 particular information request.  110 C transformer

21 exceeded the 75 percent normal rating when it was at

22 47.7 MVA.

23     Q.  Thank you.  And so this station is a bit

24 unique in the fact that it's exceeding the N minus 0
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1 condition criteria but has not yet exceeded the

2 post-contingency limits?

3     A.  [ZBIKOWSKI]  That is correct.  However,

4 with the planned growth that is occurring in this

5 area, we're seeing that we will also exceed the N

6 minus 1, the loss of a transformer, where the

7 remaining two transformers would exceed their LTE.

8     Q.  If you could please refer to EFSB-N-10.

9     A.  [ZBIKOWSKI]  I have it.

10     Q.  Thank you.  In response to N-10, the

11 company described the process it used to determine

12 the firm capacity of the Chelsea substation.  Could

13 you please walk me through this calculation.

14     A.  [ZBIKOWSKI]  Certainly.  As stated again in

15 the response, we have three transformers.  They're

16 Transformers 110 A, 110 B, 110 C.  The normal

17 ratings -- the top normal rating is 62 1/2 MVA.

18 Transformers 110 A and 110 B emergency ratings are

19 75 MVA respectively, and Transformer 110 C, its

20 emergency rating is 69 MVA respectively.

21             Chelsea station has four bus sections,

22 and that bus section is arranged so that 110 A

23 supplies Bus Section 1, 110 B supplies Bus Section

24 2, and 110 C supplies Bus Sections 3 and 4.
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1             As a result of this configuration of

2 13-kV bus sections, when we lose the largest

3 elements, which would be Transformers 110 A or 110

4 B, the remaining two transformers would then try to

5 supply two bus sections at a time.  And in that case

6 we have a 75-MVA, and associated with the -- let's

7 say A or B fails.  The remaining transformer will

8 supply Bus Sections 1 and 2.  That gives you 75.

9 And the 110 C transformer at its total nameplate

10 rating of 62 1/2 MVA would supply Bus Sections 3 and

11 4.  We had 75 plus 62 1/2, is 137.  Very difficult

12 under these circumstances to try to optimize every

13 single MVA and megawatt among the distribution

14 systems.

15             So we have used at this substation and

16 any other substations designed like this 135 MVA,

17 and primarily because of potential off-schedule

18 conditions on the distribution system -- you may

19 have a line out and then more load on an adjacent

20 bus than you had planned for.

21     Q.  So is it because of the separate nature of

22 the Bus 1 and 2 versus 3 and 4 that you would apply

23 the LTE rating to Transformers 110 A and B but not

24 the LTE rating to Transformer 110 C?
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1     A.  [ZBIKOWSKI]  Yes.

2     Q.  Are there any feasible or cost-effective

3 approaches to connecting Buses 3 and 4 in a way that

4 the LTE of Transformer 110 C could be applied, in

5 determining the substation firm capacity?

6     A.  [ZBIKOWSKI]  No.

7     Q.  I need you to elaborate on why.

8     A.  [ZBIKOWSKI]  There's a substantial amount

9 of load on each one of these bus sections, anywhere

10 between 30 to 45 MVA.  And if you try to move a

11 portion of a bus, you really couldn't move a portion

12 of a bus.  You would have to have additional

13 breakers.  You would cut the bus.  Then you would

14 have to have additional relaying to determine which

15 sections would have to be transferred under this

16 contingency or this other contingency for

17 transformers.  It gets quite complicated, and it

18 becomes actually not manageable.

19             And at the other point in time, cutting

20 a bus is not necessarily the ideal circumstance, due

21 to the reliability at that station.  You want to

22 have a solid bus, then supported by tie breakers to

23 transfer that bus to adjacent bus sections or

24 sources, should you have a loss of primary source to
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1 that affected bus.

2     Q.  In the event of the loss of Transformer 110

3 C, how are the loads from Buses 3 and 4 picked up

4 through the ABR scheme?

5     A.  [ZBIKOWSKI]  What happens is, upon the loss

6 of 110 C, Bus Sections 3 and 4 are then picked off

7 in a different manner.  3 would go to 1 and 4 would

8 go to 2.  And then the breakers between Section 1

9 and Section 2, those tie breakers would open, so

10 that Transformer 110 A would feed 1 and 3,

11 Transformer 110 B would feed 2 and 4.

12     Q.  Thank you.  If you could please turn to

13 EFSB-N-22.  I have a very similar line of

14 questioning to what we did this morning with regard

15 to the loads that are presented for Chelsea

16 substation -- specifically, before and after the

17 weather adjustments that were made.

18             So would it be correct to interpret our

19 conversation from this morning as meaning the loads

20 presented in response to N-22, where you stated that

21 2015 actual load was 111.7 MVA, but the weather-

22 adjusted demand would be 114.3 MVA, that that 114.3

23 MVA is under 50/50 weather conditions?

24     A.  [BERGER]  I'm sorry, are you referring to
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1 the revised?

2     Q.  I am not.  If you could please refer to

3 N-22, the original.

4     A.  [BERGER]  Okay.  Of the original, that is

5 what that implied, yes, that the weather adjustment

6 was 114.3.

7     Q.  And the weather adjustments were to 50/50

8 weather conditions?

9     A.  [BERGER]  They were not.  So that was the

10 reason for the revision that we did to this, because

11 in looking at it, we realized that our weather-

12 normalization methodology was likely

13 underestimating, underestimating the impact.  So

14 what this basically was doing was saying --

15             I'm sorry, may I just please take a look

16 at this again?  I'm sorry.

17             All right.  I apologize.  So it is

18 correct to say that that was based on 50/50.  That

19 was a 50/50 weather condition.

20     Q.  I'd like to make a request, that the

21 company provide the Chelsea substation 2015, what

22 the loads -- what the actual load would have been

23 under 90/10 weather conditions.  The difference

24 between this and the prior record request, in this
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1 case the figure would be presented in MVA.

2             MS. SEDOR:  That will be EFSB-RR-8.

3             (Record Request EFSB-RR-8.)

4     Q.  You had said that you thought the

5 methodology used in producing this particular number

6 was underestimating what the load would have been

7 under 50/50 weather conditions; is that correct?

8     A.  [BERGER]  No.  What I meant there is that

9 it would be underestimating what it would be under

10 90/10 conditions.

11     Q.  I'm interested in comparing 50/50 weather

12 conditions, the number that's presented in N-22-B,

13 with the chart of the weather conditions that were

14 presented in the revised N-22 response.  Am I

15 correct in understanding that the 2015 peak-day

16 temperature/humidity index, or THI, was 80?

17     A.  [BERGER]  That's correct.

18     Q.  Could you tell me what the temperature, or

19 the THI index -- THI would be for a 50/50 weather

20 condition?

21     A.  [BERGER]  If I could have a moment.  I'm

22 not sure that I have that information with me.  But

23 if I can have a moment, I may have it.

24             The normal -- the 50/50 weather



 EFSB 14-4, DPU 14-153+154 - Vol. 1 - 1/6/2016

FARMER ARSENAULT BROCK LLC

116

1 conditions would be 83, versus the 80 that's

2 reflected here.  So it actually was less severe than

3 even a 50/50, than a normal.

4     Q.  I won't try and walk through the numbers

5 for this one, because I understand we'll be getting

6 a new 2015 weather-adjusted number.  But I would

7 like to make a record request, for the company to

8 provide a comparison between the 2015 forecast

9 number that it presented, of 133, I believe the

10 megawatts was the 2015 forecast for Chelsea --

11     A.  [BERGER]  I believe that's true.

12     Q.  -- a comparison between that number, the

13 90/10 weather-adjusted number you were going to

14 calculate, plus the 2.6 MVA of delayed customer

15 connections; to please total those numbers and

16 compare with the forecast.

17     A.  [BERGER]  Yes.

18     Q.  And provide a narrative explaining any

19 differences between those two figures, and why the

20 company believes its forecast does not need to be

21 revised in light of the 2015 actuals, as it's stated

22 in response to EFSB-N-22.

23             MS. SEDOR:  That will be EFSB-RR-9.

24             (Record Request EFSB-RR-9.)
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1     Q.  And the company had highlighted two reasons

2 for the difference between the actuals and the

3 forecasts, the first being weather, and the second

4 being those delayed loads.  Are there any additional

5 factors that the company would like us to be aware

6 of?

7     A.  [BERGER]  No, not at this time.

8     Q.  In its petition the company highlights 12

9 MVA of new customer connections, 2-14R, as one of

10 the unique drivers for load growth in East Boston.

11 Can you describe, is 12 MVA of new customer

12 connections a very large amount of increase, the

13 scale of that, versus what growth would typically be

14 at a substation on the company's system over a

15 shorter period of time?

16     A.  [BERGER]  I'd refer that to Rich.

17     A.  [ZBIKOWSKI]  There are, as you said, four

18 large customer developments that exceed 1 MVA of

19 load.  That's why they're identified as so.

20             Typically, if there are no large

21 developments in the area, then the load forecast was

22 really related to the systemwide forecast and how

23 that percentage of substation -- percentage of the

24 total substation capacity versus that regional,
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1 we'll call it the Boston Edison load.

2             We would not see generally, without

3 large step increases, more than 1 to maybe 2 to 3 to

4 4 MVA.  That could be possible -- especially if the

5 Boston Edison region was also experiencing a

6 significant amount of growth.

7             So the main drivers in Chelsea at this

8 present time is this major development, these major

9 projects, that, as you've mentioned, equate to 12

10 MVA.

11     Q.  So if, comparing the 2015 forecast with the

12 adjusted number, we were seeing numbers on the order

13 of magnitude of greater than 5 MVA of difference

14 between those, it would require a significant new

15 load development to bridge that gap?  Is that a

16 fair --

17     A.  [ZBIKOWSKI]  It should be.  It should be.

18 Again, you may have an anomaly where the load

19 forecast methodology is captured, but it should be.

20 I've not in my 15 years in my present position for

21 the NSTAR north substations, have not seen that

22 dramatic amount of increase in load, but similar

23 weather conditions from one year to another, without

24 having a major large customer development.



 EFSB 14-4, DPU 14-153+154 - Vol. 1 - 1/6/2016

FARMER ARSENAULT BROCK LLC

119

1     Q.  And the 12 MVA that the company has

2 identified, there are no other large customers that

3 you're aware of that are on the horizon for this

4 particular substation?

5     A.  [ZBIKOWSKI]  No other customer has come

6 forward at this time to request a work order, which

7 is what -- when we add a major customer to our load

8 forecast, they must actually have come to us, done

9 their own planning to say, "We want electrical

10 service."  We have to ask for a work order so that

11 you start with distribution design to connect us.

12 And each one of those four customers have done that,

13 and one of them is presently in service to a small

14 degree, Pier 1, with an initial rollout.  It's about

15 7/10 of a megawatt versus 5 MVA of what they were

16 anticipating.  The other three remaining customers

17 are under construction and will start to roll out

18 their loads in 2016.

19     Q.  With regards to the Pier 1 particular load,

20 are you saying it's a staged-in service to the full

21 amount, or have they revised down --

22     A.  [ZBIKOWSKI]  No, staged-in service at this

23 time.  The first transformer came in line.  There

24 will be another transformer later on this year.  But
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1 their ultimate development is still anticipated to

2 be 5 MVA.

3     Q.  Thank you.  If you could turn to the

4 company's revised response to EFSB-N-22.  I believe

5 earlier, Mr. Andrew, you referenced us to the 86

6 percent that's bolded under this chart, and

7 indicated that a THI of 86 represents the 90/10

8 weather conditions; is that correct?

9     A.  [BERGER]  That's correct.

10     Q.  And therefore the two historical years

11 closest to the extreme weather conditions were 2011

12 and 2013, where THI reached 85?

13     A.  [BERGER]  Yes, that's correct.

14     Q.  And it's the company's position that if

15 extreme weather conditions were to return to Chelsea

16 substation again, loads would be up to a similar

17 level as 2011-2013?

18     A.  [BERGER]  Yes, that's correct.

19     Q.  And these load levels would still be below

20 the LTE rating of the substation; is that correct?

21     A.  [ZBIKOWSKI]  That is correct.  However, as

22 we talked earlier, we would be in violation of the

23 75 percent loading capability of the 110 C

24 transformer.
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1     Q.  If you could please refer to the Chelsea

2 substation load levels and the THI values for the

3 year 2010 that are included in this chart.  Is it

4 correct that this year had a relatively low THI of

5 81 compared to the 2015 THI of 80?

6     A.  [BERGER]  It was similar.

7     Q.  Yet demand in 2010 at the substation was

8 still over 120 MVA; is that correct?

9     A.  [BERGER]  That's correct.

10     Q.  Does this illustrate that it's difficult

11 and potentially inappropriate to tie substation

12 loading levels too closely to THI levels?

13     A.  [BERGER]  I'm not quite sure how to answer

14 that.  What I can say is that, in terms of our

15 forecasting methodology, we are using THI as the

16 weather-condition variable.  I guess I can't venture

17 an opinion on whether it's....

18     Q.  The company has put forward that because

19 the THI levels of 2011 and 2013 are similar to the

20 extreme weather conditions, the load levels were

21 greater than 120, it's reasonable that, in going

22 forward, if THI levels were to get above 85 again,

23 we would be back over 120 MVA; correct?

24     A.  [BERGER]  Yes.
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1     Q.  But this chart is also showing me that low

2 THI levels -- that lower THI levels of 81, very

3 close to the 2015 THI levels, also exceeded 120 MVA.

4 So I'm curious about how to draw the distinction

5 between when the high levels will be greater than

6 120 but low THI levels will also be greater than

7 120.

8     A.  [BERGER]  If I could ask Rich to comment on

9 that.

10     A.  [ZBIKOWSKI]  My perspective that I could

11 offer is, in 2010 -- I don't know exactly the

12 specific date that this has occurred on.  But it's

13 quite possible that this is a multi-level days of

14 consecutive 90-degree days.  I'm pretty confident

15 that 2015 was a single-day occurrence.

16             What happens, especially if you also

17 have weather conditions -- you may think they're

18 similar, similar heat, similar humidity.  But if

19 they occur in the months of July and August versus

20 the month of September, which 2015 was in September,

21 very rare, in my 40 years in the company, I've only

22 seen one other peak-load level occur in the month of

23 September, and that was when I was actually a co-op

24 student.
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1             So it's a different perspective on what

2 happens.  My view of seeing not only this substation

3 but many other substations, that customers react

4 differently if it's one day, over multiple days.

5 Multiple days, I've got to turn that air conditioner

6 on, especially all of a sudden during the

7 summertime, where you may not have had that cooldown

8 the day before.

9             So there's a lot of factors that can

10 affect the particular aspect of the load.  And also

11 another uniqueness of this particular service

12 territory, the peak loads can vary from early

13 afternoon, as early as 2:00 o'clock, to as late at

14 8:30.  That's a very large period of time that you

15 can have a peak load.  During the past occurrence,

16 actually in 2013, the peak load occurred between

17 8:00 and 8:30, much later than what you typically

18 would assume a peak-loading characteristic of a

19 region -- which would have been between 4:00 and

20 6:00, 6:00 in the afternoon.

21             So all those factors can give some

22 credence why the 2010 number, even though it looks

23 very similar in temperature and dew point as in the

24 2015 number, why the number was different in the
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1 actual peak load experienced at the substation.

2     Q.  Thank you.

3     A.  [ZBIKOWSKI]  You're welcome.

4     Q.  With regard to the four large customers,

5 totaling 12 MVA, that we spoke about earlier:  Is

6 the connection of any of these loads contingent on

7 the development of the East Eagle substation?

8     A.  [ZBIKOWSKI]  No.  They applied to us a year

9 or so ago, without knowledge of our own East Eagle

10 Street substation being developed.  So the customers

11 have made a decision that they have these

12 developmental needs, so that's why they're being

13 employed.

14             Whether we can supply them adequately is

15 very much dependent upon the additional

16 transformation that we're proposing at East Eagle

17 station.

18     Q.  But in the event that the East Eagle Street

19 substation was not developed, these loads would be

20 connected at Chelsea?

21     A.  [ZBIKOWSKI]  They would have to go at

22 Station 488 in Chelsea, because there's no other

23 source in the area.

24     Q.  If you could turn to EFSB-PA-2.  In this
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1 response the company stated that it plans to

2 transfer approximately 60 MVA of load from the

3 Chelsea substation to the East Eagle Street

4 substation between 2017 and 2022.  I'm wondering if

5 there are any reliability benefits associated with

6 this transfer, aside from offloading the Chelsea

7 substation transformers.

8     A.  [ZBIKOWSKI]  If the East Eagle Street

9 substation is developed and load starts to be

10 transferred over to the East Eagle Street

11 substation, the customers are now fed from shorter

12 feeders, and the shorter feeders means there's less

13 cable, less splices.  That has an inherent increase

14 in the reliability of the distribution system and

15 the supply to those customers.

16     Q.  Are the feeders between Chelsea substation

17 and East Boston unusually long compared to other

18 feeders on the company's transmission system or a

19 typical length?

20     A.  [ZBIKOWSKI]  They're relatively similar in

21 the urban area; but if we were to go out to the

22 suburban areas, this would be shorter feeders, the

23 suburban areas overhead -- meaning Medway,

24 Hopkinton, et cetera, you might have much longer
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1 feeders.

2             But in essence, though, there is another

3 characteristic you have to be aware of.  These

4 feeders are in many cases underground feeders to a

5 great extent, at least coming from Chelsea over to

6 East Boston.  They're all underground feeders going

7 through the duct bank system that we have to go over

8 the Chelsea Creek.

9             So being in that particular baseline,

10 they're all within much closer proximity to each

11 other, so they have a lot -- they do have heating

12 considerations that we have to be cognizant of, and

13 at the same time that additional heating, especially

14 if we were to have very, very warm summer conditions

15 occur throughout the month of August and September,

16 where the ground would start to heat up, could

17 actually start to pose ourselves into large

18 additional constraints in the operation of the

19 distribution system itself, whereby we could see

20 that the cables, because of the heating, high-load

21 conditions, you may actually start to experience

22 more cable failures.

23     Q.  Has the company experienced any reliability

24 concerns with those particular feeders to date?
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1     A.  [ZBIKOWSKI]  Not to date.  We've been able

2 to manage that through essentially building

3 additional feeders as required when the loads do

4 start to approach their normal rating.

5     Q.  If the East Eagle Street substation was not

6 approved at this time, what would the company do to

7 maintain a reliable supply of electricity in East

8 Boston?

9     A.  [ZBIKOWSKI]  We would have to undergo a

10 very onerous project of trying to expand Station

11 488.  That's the alternative that we've mentioned

12 before.  It would be very unique in our development,

13 because of the constrained space at Station 488, to

14 try to expand that station.

15             We also would have various additional

16 difficulties in trying to get all the necessary

17 capacity out of that substation via distribution

18 duct banks.  In fact, the type of -- we talked about

19 the configuration of the 14-kV bus sections already

20 and how they have some restriction in the ability to

21 use transformation.  At this location, again, adding

22 two more bus sections in its configuration would

23 restrict our ability to use the capacity that we

24 install.
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1             So when we install another transformer,

2 which is 62 1/2 MVA normal and 75 MVA LTE, we could

3 only get from a 14-kV bus section perspective

4 another 48 MVA of that particular capacity.  So

5 we're restricted in our ability at that location,

6 where those restrictions would not exist at East

7 Eagle Street.  At that substation we would be able

8 to get the full capability of those transformers.

9     Q.  Would the company need any approvals from

10 the EFSB or DPU for the Chelsea substation

11 expansion?

12     A.  [ZBIKOWSKI]  Just the station expansion

13 itself, not necessarily referring to the specific

14 need of also following another transmission source

15 to support that load, the answer is no.

16     Q.  Thank you.

17             I'd like to move on to the topic of

18 project alternatives, then, starting with questions

19 on nontransmission alternatives.  In response to

20 EFSB-PA-15, the company stated that DG, energy

21 efficiency, and demand response are not effective

22 solutions for addressing the loss of load in the

23 Chelsea-East Boston-Lynn load area, since DG

24 facilities would disconnect following the
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1 contingency of concern and EE and DR do not provide

2 capacity to support customer load.

3             I'm wondering if the development of a

4 sufficient level of demand-side resources, such that

5 the net demand of the area remained below 300

6 megawatts over the planning period, would be

7 sufficient to ensure compliance with the ISO load

8 interruption criteria.

9     A.  [ANDREW]  Well, I think it goes back to our

10 discussion earlier about what is load.  So in the

11 context of the 300-megawatt criteria, when it was

12 originally developed, it was the load in the area,

13 not the load minus projected energy efficiency, you

14 know, DR, and PD output.

15             That is kind of a question that's still

16 to be fully answered at the ISO level.  It was a

17 simple question years ago:  What was load?  It was

18 simple.  Now, because of the different mechanisms we

19 use to pay for things, to pay for demand response,

20 we go through a market bidding thing, and it gets

21 incorporated into planning in a particular way.

22             At the ISO level, planning for New

23 England, that's fine.  Planning at the substation

24 level, we cannot use demand response.  We have no
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1 mechanism to actually implement it.  If our control

2 room calls the ISO control room and asks them to,

3 they will be told no, because the ISO has to be in

4 Operating Procedure 4 before they can implement

5 that.

6             So crediting demand response in this

7 context really to me isn't viable.  Now, that

8 doesn't mean -- the ISO has very open and active

9 methods of developing their rules.  That doesn't

10 mean I would win -- you know, win the day in the

11 argument.  That's there.

12             But the real issue is, are you

13 manipulating a number to get below a threshold, or

14 are you changing the impact on society -- the

15 customers, the homes, the businesses, that will be

16 in the dark and will be out of business and will be

17 disrupted while all this takes place.  I feel that's

18 a much more valid way to look at it -- not can I

19 find a way to manipulate the number down under 300,

20 but can we find a better way to count so that we set

21 a fair threshold across New England for cost

22 recovery, so that people share the burden equally.

23     Q.  Mr. Andrew, you mentioned that for the

24 specific Chelsea substation capacity need, DR in
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1 particular would not be an effective solution, since

2 ISO would not dispatch DR resources for a substation

3 contingency; is that correct?

4     A.  [ANDREW]  That's correct.

5     Q.  With regard to the feasibility of energy

6 efficiency as a solution for the particular Chelsea

7 substation capacity needs:  In response to

8 EFSB-PA-17 the company stated that a peak-demand

9 reduction of 11 to 16 percent above existing EE

10 efforts cannot be considered likely or practical.

11 Is that correct?

12     A.  [ZBIKOWSKI]  That is correct.  Actually,

13 not 11 percent -- I'm referencing the PA 17 response

14 B, at 11.8 megawatts of energy efficiency and

15 respectively increasing to 14.9 megawatts.  Maybe

16 you converted that to a percentage.  I did not.

17     Q.  No, I think if you refer to Part E, Subpart

18 2, on Page 3 of 5 of the response, the company

19 presented the 11 --

20     A.  [ZBIKOWSKI]  You're right.  I didn't go

21 that far.  I appreciate it.  That is a substantial

22 portion of a load in a region.  The company is an

23 aggressive implementer of energy efficiency and has

24 essentially used that as a very effective means of
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1 mitigating load growth in areas, including the

2 Chelsea-East Boston area.

3     Q.  In some of the other proceedings that are

4 currently before the Siting Board -- for example,

5 the Mystic-Woburn transmission line, EFSB-15-7 --

6 the company has provided an assessment of NTA

7 resources prepared by London Economics

8 International.  Are you aware of this report?  Is

9 anyone on the panel aware of this report?

10     A.  [ANDREW]  Yes.

11     Q.  In this particular report, I'd like to

12 provide a short excerpt from it, the cover page and

13 Page 19, that I'd like to have marked.

14             MS. SEDOR:  We'll mark this two-page

15 document as Exhibit EFSB-1.

16             (Exhibit EFSB-1 marked for

17 identification.)

18     Q.  In this report LEI considers energy

19 efficiency reductions up to 15 percent of the load

20 at a particular substation as a feasible NTA

21 alternative; is that correct?  In particular, I

22 refer to Footnote 14 of the exhibit I just provided.

23     A.  [ANDREW]  They state that LEI assumed that

24 at most 15 percent of the peak load can be expected
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1 to be reduced using new energy efficiency measures.

2     Q.  I'm wondering if you could please explain

3 for me why the company considered peak-load

4 reductions of up to 15 percent as feasible elsewhere

5 in the Greater Boston area but not at the Chelsea

6 substation.

7     A.  [ANDREW]  Well, in general, our experiences

8 with targeted energy efficiency have been, the

9 smaller your bullseye, the harder it is to

10 accomplish a number.  In the Mystic-Woburn analysis,

11 I believe they were looking at a much larger area to

12 do it.

13             So coming into a particular area, we

14 cannot require anybody to implement energy

15 efficiency.  We can only offer.  And the more people

16 you offer it to, the larger number will accept it.

17             So as we take the circle of influence

18 and tighten it down from, say, the North Shore area

19 down to specifically Chelsea and East Boston, it

20 becomes much more difficult to get effective

21 penetration in that area.

22     Q.  So the broader -- casting a broader net

23 over the entire Mystic-Woburn area versus a single

24 station makes it more achievable that 15 percent EE
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1 reduction could be seen at any of the individual

2 substations within that Mystic-Woburn area?  Is that

3 what I'm hearing?

4     A.  [ANDREW]  Yes, that it's possible -- you

5 know, in one area, if you were able to get a large

6 mall, you know, a large commercial, you know,

7 project in some area to adopt, you might actually

8 for there get more than 15, but then in other areas

9 you're not going to be able to get it, and it's

10 going to come out kind of in an average kind of

11 basis.

12             One of our other challenges in this

13 particular area is that we do have one major

14 customer, you know, being MassPort, and they have

15 always been an early adopter of efficiency-level

16 technologies.  So our opportunity there within this

17 load area is less.

18     Q.  Given the 12 MVA of large customer

19 connections that have come forward to the company,

20 would Chelsea -- or would loads of that type, would

21 Chelsea substation be a particularly good candidate

22 for incremental energy efficiency measures?

23     A.  [ANDREW]  Well, I think most new facilities

24 are being built to current codes, which require
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1 that.  And there are, I believe, energy efficiency

2 incentive programs for people building new

3 facilities, to make sure they build that into their

4 project from the very beginning.  So I don't believe

5 the new loads present a prime opportunity.  I think

6 it's already in those new loads.

7 BY MS. SHAPIRO:

8     Q.  So, Mr. Andrew, when you were talking about

9 this area, the Chelsea area, Chelsea-East Boston

10 versus Mystic-Woburn, when you talked about, I

11 believe, the geographic area, that it's a wider area

12 for Mystic-Woburn than --

13     A.  [ANDREW]  Yes.

14     Q.  In terms of population, is that also

15 different?

16     A.  [ANDREW]  Well, yeah.  I think in the case

17 of Mystic to Woburn, the overload that's being

18 addressed there relates to contingencies that create

19 regional power flows -- I'll say like the Boston and

20 North Shore area.  So if you can reduce load in that

21 bigger area, you can have positive effects on the

22 Mystic-Woburn line, whereas what we're looking at

23 here is specifically targeted at the supply for

24 Chelsea and East Boston.
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1             So if we were to implement energy

2 efficiency that lowered loads in Everett, it would

3 have no effect on the Mystic -- or the Chelsea area

4 whatsoever.  But it would have a positive effect on

5 the Mystic-to-Woburn area.

6     Q.  For Everett.

7     A.  [ANDREW]  Yes.

8     Q.  And in terms of the type of residential

9 versus industrial and commercial of the two areas

10 we're talking about, the two areas in general, does

11 that have anything to do with how energy efficiency

12 would be more effective or less effective?

13     A.  [ANDREW]  Well, I think in general, the

14 larger the load, the more opportunities there are,

15 you know.  So if you have commercial/industrial

16 facilities that are larger loads, then you tend to

17 get that.

18             I do know, as we have implemented a lot

19 of the energy efficiency programs over the last

20 five-plus years, because we had energy efficiency

21 targets measured in kilowatthours, the first

22 response was to find large customers.  You know,

23 they're tasked with being cost-effective -- you

24 know, the old bank-for-the-buck proverb.  So we
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1 outreach to large customers first.  I mean, our

2 bigger customers are the ones that have account

3 executives that see, you know, the people, the

4 facilities people there, on a monthly basis, dealing

5 with whatever issues and are presenting

6 opportunities on a constant basis.

7             So large customers, you know, have been

8 addressed very early in the process, and any new

9 opportunities that come up, because they will be

10 some of the most cost-effective places, they're

11 addressed -- or asked -- the opportunity is

12 presented soonest.

13     Q.  So are you saying that in the two areas

14 that we've been comparing, that the Chelsea-East

15 Boston area has had a lot of energy efficiency and

16 they could have reached that goal and the Woburn-

17 Mystic area has not?

18     A.  [ANDREW]  Well, I would say in the Chelsea-

19 East Boston area, the presence of MassPort as a

20 large load -- and we will provide the answer on what

21 that percentage is -- means that a lot of the

22 opportunities have been taken advantage of, in terms

23 of --

24             You know, when you walk through, you
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1 know, the facilities over there, you know, it's an

2 advertisement for energy-efficient lighting and

3 people-moving technologies and so forth.  So

4 MassPort has done a very good job of being an early

5 adopter of technologies and using them and putting

6 them in practice.

7             So there aren't a lot of opportunities

8 for us with them.  They're not a low-hanging fruit,

9 to go get a big result.  So that takes a big chunk

10 of the load off the table, in terms of what can we

11 do with energy-efficiency improvements in the area.

12             Just as if there's a lot of new

13 construction, most new construction has to be built

14 to current building codes and energy-efficiency

15 codes, and the Commonwealth has been a very early

16 adopter of very aggressive standards in that area.

17 So that most new construction really isn't a big

18 opportunity for energy efficiency.  It's in there.

19 They've done that from the very beginning, when they

20 designed it.

21             Your real opportunities come with older

22 facilities employing older technologies.  I keep

23 wanting somebody to come pay me to replace my air

24 conditioner.  But I live in New Hampshire.  That's
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1 my problem, I guess.

2             But that's what's happening, to a large

3 degree.  You know, we have been so aggressive, I

4 think, across the state with all the programs, you

5 know, being an adopter of energy-efficiency

6 technologies and providing a lot of funding to pay

7 for the actions, that additional supplemental

8 opportunities are getting harder and harder to find.

9     Q.  But based on this report, you're saying

10 there's more opportunities in the Mystic-Woburn

11 area, and that's what gets it up to 15 percent,

12 where --

13     A.  [ANDREW]  Well, I think that is somewhat of

14 an assumption on LEI's part.

15             MS. KEUTHEN:  Could I just direct the

16 witness's attention to the footnote as well?

17     A.  [ANDREW]  I think Footnote 14, at the

18 bottom of the page, you know, indicates, you know,

19 some of the challenges we've had with targeted

20 programs in very tight geographical areas.

21     Q.  So in looking at the answer, then, to

22 EFSB-PA-17, and I'm looking at the energy-efficiency

23 answer under E, where it states that if you were to

24 try to get an 11 to 16 percent reduction, that
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1 cannot be considered likely or practical.  Is there

2 a particular number for this area that would be

3 considered likely or practical?

4     A.  [ANDREW]  Well, that I don't know offhand.

5 I would have to consult with our energy-efficiency

6 group to see if they could venture on that, in terms

7 of looking at the area.

8     Q.  Because we're going from one report -- I

9 realize there's an assumption that says one area

10 could be up to 15, whereas this is not even getting

11 to 11 percent, it seems like is likely.

12     A.  [ANDREW]  Right.

13     Q.  So we're already looking at a lower

14 percentage.  So I guess I'd like to make a record

15 request, for some further information about what

16 would be a likely target for energy efficiency for

17 this area.

18     A.  [ANDREW]  Okay.

19     Q.  And also perhaps to give a further -- I

20 know you gave an in-depth explanation, but of why 15

21 percent for the Mystic-Woburn area -- I know it's an

22 assumption -- differs substantially from at least

23 not even getting to 11 percent in the Chelsea-East

24 Boston area.
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1     A.  [ANDREW]  Sure.

2     Q.  Thank you.

3             MS. SEDOR:  Mr. Andrew, was that clear

4 to you?  Because when Ms. Shapiro said "this area,"

5 I wasn't sure I was following her.  But if you

6 understood it, that's all that matters.

7     Q.  The Chelsea-East Boston area versus the

8 Mystic-Woburn area.  I'm sorry.

9     A.  [ANDREW]  Yeah.

10             MS. SEDOR:  That will be EFSB-RR-10.

11             (Record Request EFSB-RR-10.)

12 BY MS. DE BOER:

13     Q.  In support of the discussion Ms. Shapiro

14 has been leading, I refer the witnesses to Part V of

15 their response to EFSB-PA-17.  The company stated

16 here at least that with concerted effort it may be

17 possible to double the energy efficiency within the

18 Chelsea-East Boston region.

19             Given this additional information, does

20 this help the witnesses respond in terms of how much

21 might be practical?  I admit, I don't have

22 percentages here in front of me.

23     A.  [ANDREW]  I think we still need to take it

24 back to our energy-efficiency folks, in terms of
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1 doing it.  I do know my discussions with them in the

2 past on targeted programs have -- has been, you

3 know, they're very reluctant to put a stake in the

4 ground around a number, based on past experience.

5             And the answer is always, "We can't make

6 people do it.  All we can do is offer, and we offer

7 every day to do it."  But we can get a more detailed

8 answer.

9     Q.  Referring back to the 75-percent-of-normal

10 rating criterion and the existing exceedances the

11 company identified:  I would be interested in how

12 much energy efficiency, distributed generation, or

13 energy storage would be required to address this

14 particular portion of the need, and the company's

15 position on the cost-effectiveness or feasibility of

16 such a solution.

17             You'll notice I've excluded demand

18 response from that list based on Mr. Andrew's

19 comment that demand response would not be dispatched

20 in response to the local substation need.  Is it

21 correct that that would also apply for N minus 0

22 conditions at the substation as well?

23     A.  [ANDREW]  Oh, yes, yeah.

24     Q.  I'm curious whether the company can venture
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1 a position on that question today, or if that should

2 be a record request.

3     A.  [ZBIKOWSKI]  The response relates to the

4 energy-efficiency side, and again, we'd have to look

5 at it.  If there were no load growth at the station,

6 we would see essentially a value of approximately

7 maybe 6/10 or so MVA over the capability of 75

8 percent.  Questionable as to whether or not we can

9 get it to those customers and so forth.  But given

10 the numbers that we talked about, 6/10 of a megawatt

11 versus where we -- as you pointed out, we do say

12 that we could possibly get a regional load anywhere

13 between 5 -- at least in the response -- 5 to 7 to 9

14 and 7.  So the answer is maybe you could go off and

15 offer and maybe be able to change it, as such.  But

16 it's just energy efficiency; as you say, no demand

17 response.  And again, this particular overload

18 condition can occur very, very -- in the evening

19 hours, as I said, 8:00 o'clock.  So there's no

20 distributed generation, solar could be involved,

21 because it's offline.

22             So it's just one particular aspect of

23 targeted energy efficiencies to see if we could get

24 it on those particular circuits and customers to
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1 address that need.  So we'd have to take a look to

2 see if that's possible.

3     Q.  So I'd like to make a record request for

4 that, please -- purely the energy-efficiency portion

5 as described.

6     A.  [ZBIKOWSKI]  I just want to make sure that

7 everyone understands:  The numbers of the load

8 forecast itself already has energy-efficiency

9 numbers, components in it.  This is in addition to

10 what we have assumed to be part of those baseline

11 numbers.

12     Q.  Correct.  I'm referring to incremental

13 energy efficiency.  Thank you for clarifying.

14 BY MS. SHAPIRO:

15     Q.  Besides energy efficiency:  So you're

16 saying there's no other nontransmission alternative,

17 or if you could address the issue of another

18 nontransmission alternative in a smaller component.

19 Because here you talked about, I think, storage, but

20 we're talking about a larger amount, where if we're

21 just trying to get below the 75 percent -- and I

22 think you said it was 6/10 --

23     A.  [ZBIKOWSKI]  A small number.

24     Q.  -- if there's other nontransmission
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1 alternatives.  I know you said solar isn't available

2 at night, but there could be storage, could be wind,

3 could be something else.  I'm just trying to expand

4 the question to not only include energy efficiency.

5     A.  [ZBIKOWSKI]  Understood.  The main part of

6 what we'd have to consider is the length of time

7 that you have this particular overload exceeding the

8 criteria condition to occur and how frequently that

9 could happen.  If we had a continuous heat wave,

10 multiple days, let's say three, five days even, we'd

11 find ourselves at this level on a continuous basis.

12             So many times the concern that we have

13 is, beyond energy efficiency, is the other facility

14 able to continuously get itself replenished during

15 that particular time to support that load.  Even a

16 small amount of load, it could be more difficult in

17 that process.

18             So that's why I'm saying energy

19 efficiency looks to be the first and most optimistic

20 approach.

21             MS. SEDOR:  That would be EFSB-RR-11.

22             (Record Request EFSB-RR-11.)

23 BY MS. DE BOER:

24     Q.  Could you please refer to the company's
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1 response to EFSB-PA-20.

2     A.  [ZBIKOWSKI]  Yes.

3     Q.  Just a clarifying question on the company's

4 response:  Do the IEEE standards apply to larger

5 generation units, like the GE Lynn and RESCO

6 generators, as well as small-scale distributed

7 generation facilities?

8     A.  [ANDREW]  Specifically IEEE 1547?

9     Q.  Yes, that's correct.

10     A.  [ANDREW]  IEEE has a gazillion standards.

11 So there certainly are ones that do apply.

12             1547 is specifically for generation,

13 distributed generation interconnected to your

14 distribution system, basically.  So RESCO and GE,

15 you know, interconnect at the transmission level.

16     Q.  Are there similar rules or standards to

17 those governing the distributed generation

18 facilities that would prevent local, larger-scale

19 generation from supplying load within a load island?

20     A.  [ANDREW]  No, there's nothing that would

21 prevent them from doing that, other than the ISO's

22 operating procedures and their ability to black-

23 start.  Given that the load pocket would be

24 disconnected from the system, when that happened, we
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1 would expect those generating units to trip.

2 Certainly RESCO would trip because there is no -- it

3 has minimal loads in relation to its output, so it

4 would go into an overspeed condition, and its

5 protection would trip it and protect it.

6             It's extremely rare.  Then, at that

7 point, say if GE is on, then they are trying to

8 supply all the load in the area and they're pumping

9 into a fault.  So they're going to trip, also.

10             So if the units are black-start-capable,

11 then they can restart them -- you know, the people

12 responsible for their operation.  I don't believe

13 any of these units are part of the ISO's system-

14 restoration process, you know, for that.  They may

15 be capable of doing it.  They may have done it for

16 their own reasons.

17             But if they did it for their own

18 reasons -- say if I worked for GE and I had the

19 capability, I would do it to supply my load.  I

20 might have some very important processes that are

21 very expensive that I have to keep in service,

22 something of that nature.  So I would isolate from

23 the system, start my unit, and supply my load.

24             I don't believe GE is in the market, so
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1 to speak, so I don't believe they're under any

2 obligation to do that, and certainly RESCO, if

3 they're not part of the system-restoration process,

4 is under no obligation to do that.  And that gets to

5 be quite complicated, to run a unit as an island.

6 It's much more of a challenge.  You risk damage to

7 your equipment, so most owners simply say, "I'm not

8 going to go there.  If you're not paying me, I'm not

9 going to do it."

10     Q.  So is it the company's position that these

11 two particular generators could not be used

12 following the contingency of concern to restore the

13 East -- the load pockets, the Chelsea-East Boston-

14 Lynn load area?

15     A.  [ANDREW]  Yes.

16             MS. SEDOR:  Let's go off the record and

17 take a 15-minute break.

18             (Recess taken.)

19             MS. SEDOR:  Let's go back on the record.

20     Q.  In response to EFSB-PA-15 the company

21 stated that DG, EE, and DR are not effective options

22 for addressing the post-contingency low-voltage

23 needs in the area.  I'm wondering if you could

24 please explain to me why this would be the case.
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1     A.  [ANDREW]  So the question relates to how

2 would DG and/or EE be a potential solution to the

3 low-voltage violation --

4     Q.  Correct.  Thank you.

5     A.  [ANDREW]  -- that's in the area.  I guess

6 we really didn't answer that in the response.

7     Q.  I apologize.  I realized that after I asked

8 it.

9     A.  [ANDREW]  I looked, and that's our bad.  I

10 think we should have done that.  I think we should

11 probably revise this response to provide a proper

12 answer.  I think we blew it there.

13     Q.  So rather than a record request, just an

14 updated information request, PA-15?

15     A.  [ANDREW]  Yes, we'll update PA-15 and

16 provide a complete answer.  I apologize.

17     Q.  Moving on to the transmission and

18 substation alternatives:  The company identified

19 four transmission and substation alternatives on

20 Page 3-8R of the petition.  The company describes

21 some of the breakers that would be required under

22 the East Eagle Street substation as well as under

23 Solutions 2 and 3.  So at the top of Page 3-8R the

24 company stated that for the proposed project --
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1 sorry, but for Solution 2, only two 115-kV circuit

2 breakers would be required instead of the six that

3 were required for the project.  I was wondering if

4 you could explain to me why fewer breakers are

5 needed under Solutions 2 and 3 versus the project.

6     A.  [ZBIKOWSKI]  The project itself as laid out

7 contemplates the final development of a third

8 transformer and third transmission -- potential

9 third transmission supply.  And once you bring a

10 substation into service, you want to make sure what

11 other additional facilities that you're adding will

12 not adversely affect those customers that are there.

13             So we essentially laid this out

14 initially with all the breakers in service, so that

15 should an additional expansion for that third

16 transformer -- or, if we had to put a third

17 transmission line into that site -- we would be able

18 to readily be able to accommodate that, without

19 having to necessarily say I've got two breakers, now

20 I've got to expand out to the third breaker, the

21 fourth breaker, itself.  If I only put the two

22 breakers in, I'm talking about taking everything out

23 of service at that particular substation to

24 essentially connect anything else at that moment in
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1 time.

2             So the East Eagle Street proposal is

3 fully vetted out for the ultimate development.  The

4 other particular stations were just minimally --

5 said one breaker each to have on the high side of

6 the transformers, and essentially that's as far as

7 we went.  We didn't necessarily look at, going

8 beyond that, how would we develop the third

9 transformer at those Options Nos. 2 and 3.

10     Q.  So in comparison between the capability

11 provided by the proposed Solution 1 versus Solution

12 2 and Solution 3, the project would provide greater

13 flexibility for future expansion versus Solutions 2

14 and 3?

15     A.  [ZBIKOWSKI]  That is correct.

16     Q.  For the purposes of comparing those

17 solutions on an equal footing in terms of the cost

18 estimates, the environmental impacts associated,

19 would the company want to include that additional

20 expansion capability, or are you satisfied with the

21 current approach, which does not include the

22 additional flexibility for Solutions 2 and 3?

23     A.  [ZBIKOWSKI]  Can you repeat the question to

24 me?
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1     Q.  I'm first of all interested in why for the

2 purposes of comparing the substation, the new East

3 Eagle Street substation associated with Options 1,

4 2, and 3, why Solution 1 included that additional

5 flexibility for future expansion, while Solutions 2

6 and 3 did not, and whether or not the company for

7 the purposes of comparing those solutions on an

8 equal footing would have wanted to include costs for

9 that additional flexibility in its estimates for

10 Solutions 2 and 3.

11     A.  [ZICKO]  If I could just confer for a

12 moment.

13     Q.  Please.

14             (Pause.)

15     A.  [ANDREW]  Design 1 is the looped-through

16 configuration.  So the additional breakers are there

17 in the fundamentally ring-bus configuration, to

18 ensure that breaker failure cannot black out the

19 substation.

20             Solutions 2 and 3 are radial in nature,

21 where really the transmission line is just a long

22 umbilical cord from its source substation, so that

23 it is a lot simpler in design and the number of

24 breakers.
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1     Q.  Thank you.  On Pages 3-7R to 3-9R of the

2 petition, the company stated that for Solutions 2,

3 3, and 4 space constraints at the Mystic or Chelsea

4 substations would necessitate the construction of an

5 elevated platform above existing substation

6 equipment to accommodate new GIS equipment.  Is that

7 correct?

8     A.  [ZICKO]  That is correct.

9     Q.  Would the company have any concerns with

10 the feasibility or reliability of such a substation

11 design?

12     A.  [ZICKO]  No.  We have substations that have

13 gas-insulated equipment in buildings on multiple

14 floors, so it would be tantamount to the same thing.

15             I think what the specific challenge

16 would be, would be constructing that platform in an

17 operating substation and trying to keep everything

18 safely and reliably in service and serving load

19 while you did the construction.

20     Q.  So it's a concern around the feasibility or

21 the constructability of such a solution.

22     A.  [ZICKO]  Yes, that's the chief concern.

23     Q.  Solution 1 would not require the

24 construction of new substation facilities above
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1 existing new equipment; is that correct?

2     A.  [ANDREW]  Yes, that's correct.

3     Q.  From the company's perspective, would this

4 make Solution 1 preferable to Solutions 2, 3, and 4

5 from a constructability and/or a reliability

6 perspective?

7     A.  [ANDREW]  Absolutely.

8     Q.  To Mr. Zicko's point, is it really purely

9 from a constructability perspective, or are there

10 reliability benefits associated with that?

11     A.  [ZICKO]  I think the two go hand in hand.

12 The reliability during the construction, the number

13 of, you know, piles and so forth that you need to

14 get down through the ground in congested yards and

15 working over existing in-service equipment -- you

16 may need to switch some of that out.  Anytime you

17 switch something out, you know, as Mr. Andrew had

18 testified earlier, you start, you know, taking the

19 system apart.

20     Q.  Thank you.  If you could please refer to

21 the petition at 3-10R.  The company stated that the

22 increased costs for Solutions 2 and 3 compared to

23 the project are principally due to the additional

24 cable costs.  The company goes on to say that the



 EFSB 14-4, DPU 14-153+154 - Vol. 1 - 1/6/2016

FARMER ARSENAULT BROCK LLC

155

1 cost differential for Solutions -- for Solution 2 is

2 33 percent greater than the project and the cost

3 differential for Solution 3 is 103 percent greater

4 than the project.  When I look at the cost figures

5 presented on Page 3-11, I did not get those same

6 cost differentials.  I'm wondering if you could

7 please walk me through the 3-11 figures, cost

8 figures, and how the 33 percent and 103 percent

9 deltas were calculated.

10             MS. KEUTHEN:  Is that 3-11R?  That was a

11 revised page.

12     Q.  So the costs I'm seeing between 3-11 and

13 3-11R appear to be identical.  So I think probably

14 either or would suffice.

15     A.  [ZBIKOWSKI]  Again, your question --

16 because I was trying to find this source.  I didn't

17 have it in front of me.

18     Q.  On 3-10R, Paragraph 1, the last sentence or

19 so describes the differential in cost between the

20 project and Solution 1 and presents them as a

21 percentage.  But I was having trouble recreating

22 those differentials based on the numbers presented

23 in the charts.

24     A.  [ZBIKOWSKI]  Looking at Table 3-11, we do
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1 not retain those numbers, either.

2     A.  [BERGERON]  I can actually offer a

3 correction.  The numbers presented on Page 3-10R

4 that you referred to should be corrected to read the

5 cost differential for Solution No. 2 is 30 percent

6 greater than Solution 1, or the cost differential

7 for Solution No. 3 is 24 percent greater than

8 Solution 1, if I've done my math correctly here.

9     Q.  Thank you.  I appreciate it.

10             Have you guys had a chance to look at

11 that?

12     A.  [ZBIKOWSKI]  I still want to consult with

13 Marc.

14             MS. SEDOR:  Why don't we go off the

15 record for a couple of minutes.

16             (Discussion off the record.)

17             MS. SEDOR:  Let's go back on the record.

18     A.  [ZBIKOWSKI]  We will revise the statement

19 on 3-10R to read 30 percent greater than Solution 1

20 and 24 percent greater than Solution 2 -- that

21 second statement.  That's what we've been advised,

22 and that's what we'll go to.

23             Is that the numbers you got?

24     Q.  So I confess, that's not the numbers I got.
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1     A.  [ANDREW]  Actually, why don't we revise it

2 and we'll actually put the calculation right there.

3             MS. SEDOR:  That would be very helpful.

4     A.  [ANDREW]  It depends on how you want to

5 calculate your percent.

6     Q.  The numbers I was producing were 41 and 35,

7 respectively.

8     A.  [ZBIKOWSKI]  That's what I got.

9     Q.  I would much prefer you do the math than

10 me.

11     A.  [ANDREW]  We'll revise this and actually

12 put the math in there so that you can see which way

13 the percent was done.

14     Q.  Thank you.

15             MS. SEDOR:  Why don't we actually make

16 that a record request.  We'll make that EFSB-RR-12.

17 I think it's easier to keep track of things that

18 way.

19             (Record Request EFSB-RR-12.)

20     Q.  If you could please refer to EFSB-PA-24,

21 the revised table, EFSB-PA-11-R-1 presents

22 information based on the number of housing units

23 rather than buildings along each route; is that

24 correct?
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1     A.  [BERGERON]  That is correct.

2     Q.  Based on this information, the company

3 concluded that it would be -- or that the

4 environmental impacts associated with the project

5 will be less than those associated with Solutions 2

6 and 3; is that correct?

7     A.  [BERGERON]  With regard to strictly housing

8 units or other environmental factors?

9     Q.  Overall, in Part B specifically, it

10 highlights the company's position that Route No. 4

11 generally has less potential for environmental

12 impacts.  But I was interested in the company's

13 conclusions with regards to Solutions 2 and 3, in

14 addition to Solution 4.

15     A.  [BERGERON]  In looking at that comparison

16 of Routes 2 and 3 to Option 1, environmental impacts

17 along those particular routes are fairly similar to

18 what would be incurred along Solution 1, mostly

19 because, again, those -- that option partially

20 contains routing associated with Option 1 as well.

21 So I would characterize them as fairly equal from an

22 environmental-impact perspective.

23             I think what I also would like to add,

24 too, is that, as noted in Footnote 1 in our response
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1 to EFSB-PA-24, there would be additional

2 distribution required for Routes 2 and 3.  So adding

3 that additional distribution --

4             I'm sorry, that's only associated with

5 No. 4.  I'll retract that.

6     Q.  I believe in the petition the company had

7 stated that Solutions 2 and 3 were less preferred

8 from an environmental-impacts perspective, due to

9 the longer cable lengths.  Does that seem correct to

10 you?

11     A.  [BERGERON]  Yes, that's correct.

12 Generally, if you have longer routes, you're going

13 to pass by more businesses and houses; that's

14 correct.

15     Q.  Am I understanding your testimony today to

16 be that, based on this chart, rather than 2 and 3

17 having greater environmental impacts, you would

18 characterize them as similar?

19     A.  [BERGERON]  Yes, that's correct.  In

20 response to the request, information request, when

21 we did a more detailed analysis of that, you can

22 actually see that, when you actually do the counts,

23 they are fairly similar in nature, rather than just

24 following the assumption that a longer route would
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1 have more impacts.

2     Q.  Thank you.  With respect to Solution 4

3 specifically, would replacing one, some, or all of

4 the existing transformers at the Chelsea substation

5 with larger units, rather than installing a fourth

6 37/50/62.5-MVA transformer, be a feasible and

7 cost-effective solution?

8     A.  [ZICKO]  The transformer that we currently

9 have in there and that's the basic backbone or

10 workhorse of our distribution system in what was the

11 Boston Edison area is the top nameplate 62 1/2, with

12 the emergency of 75.  That corresponds to

13 approximately 3,000 amps at 15 kV, and that matches

14 up well with 3,000-amp switchgear, which is the

15 highest ANSI gear that you can get without starting

16 to get into things like forced cooling and other

17 items that kind of tend to lower reliability.

18             It also, as the transformer becomes

19 larger, it's, of course, going to have to involve

20 more heat, so it becomes a heat-management issue for

21 the transformer.  So the 75 MVA with a secondary is

22 pretty much the upper practical limit of what we can

23 build and put in there.  We'd have to go with

24 transformers that have dual secondaries on them that
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1 manage the heat, and then we'd run into, again,

2 terminating them into a high-enough-rated breaker

3 and getting the two duct banks through the station

4 far enough apart so that you don't get the mutual

5 heating of one impacting the other.  So it's not

6 practical to do at this location.

7     Q.  Thank you.  Could you refer to Page 3-14 of

8 the petition.

9     A.  [BERGERON]  You're looking at the revised

10 version?

11     Q.  Mine doesn't have an R on it.  But I'm

12 looking at Solution No. 4 requires increased cost

13 and complexity of distribution lines.

14             The company stated that there's only a

15 single path of egress for distribution feeders from

16 the Chelsea substation; is that correct?

17     A.  [ZBIKOWSKI]  That is correct.

18     Q.  With regard to Solution 4, is there enough

19 space in this egress to accommodate both the new

20 115-kV transmission line between the Mystic and

21 Chelsea stations as well as the additional feeders

22 required to East Boston?

23     A.  [ZBIKOWSKI]  There is not.

24     Q.  Does that eliminate Solution 4 from a
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1 feasibility perspective?

2     A.  [ZBIKOWSKI]  It means that we have

3 difficulties trying to get the distribution duct

4 bank out of the station because priority would be

5 given to the new transmission line.

6             At this moment we have not been able to

7 identify a route for that distribution to come out

8 of the substation.

9     Q.  Would it be feasible to acquire an

10 additional path of egress from the substation -- to

11 purchase additional land in the area or to --

12     A.  [BERGER]  If we get out of the substation

13 at Willoughby, the next path of concern is Eastern

14 Avenue.  Similar constraints occur throughout that

15 path that goes all pretty much down towards the

16 location where we have put an additional duct bank.

17 We can't get another duct bank down Eastern Avenue.

18 We have to find another completely independent route

19 throughout the City of Chelsea to locate those

20 distribution conduits, and that's not been

21 identified at this time.

22     Q.  Does it seem like an over -- unachievable

23 solution to you at this point?

24     A.  [ZBIKOWSKI]  It is much longer in distance,
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1 knowing the city that I grew up in.  The fact is,

2 we'd have to go -- wires from Chelsea substation

3 down Eastern Avenue to the Chelsea Creek Crossing

4 down to East Boston, we'd have to find another path

5 essentially going around the city, most likely down

6 the center of Broadway, again toward Marginal

7 Street, to get the creek crossing.  That without a

8 question, since you're not going directly, you're

9 going around, it would be exceptionally, much

10 longer, I would estimate well over 50 percent longer

11 in ductwork in the City of Chelsea alone.  And

12 whether we are able to accommodate that and get

13 across whatever infrastructure that's there is

14 another question, of which the first question would

15 be getting across the bridge on Broadway, since

16 there's no duct bank that exists in that particular

17 region at the time.

18             So it would be a very, very difficult

19 path for us to attain.

20     Q.  Would fewer, larger-capacity feeders be

21 another potential option to overcome the egress

22 issue?

23     A.  [ZBIKOWSKI]  No, again, it's the path of

24 itself.  We just cannot put any more distribution
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1 down that path and new duct bank associated with the

2 new two new sections of switchgear required

3 additional duct bank to go over to the creek

4 crossing, and we just don't have the distribution

5 available.  So we'd have to install something, and

6 that's not feasible down Eastern Avenue.

7     Q.  So hypothetically speaking, you wouldn't be

8 able to cut back on the number of existing feeders

9 by putting larger ones in and therefore making space

10 for new feeders?

11     A.  [ZBIKOWSKI]  Generally, we try to install

12 the largest cable possible, a million copper, in the

13 existing duct bank.  So we try to already use that

14 approach.  We just cannot fit any more into the

15 existing duct bank if we were to try to expand

16 Chelsea Station 488.

17     Q.  If you could refer again to the cost

18 estimate chart on Page 3-11 of the petition, as well

19 as to EFSB-PA-10?

20     A.  I have PA-10 in front of me.

21     Q.  With regard to the cost of Solution 4, the

22 company stated that a large component of the

23 estimated 118.6-million-dollar cost estimate is

24 associated with the required distribution feeder
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1 buildout.  Is that correct?

2     A.  [ZBIKOWSKI]  That's correct.

3     Q.  In response to EFSB-PA-10 and the

4 conversation we've just been having, the company

5 stated that due to feeder getaway constraints at the

6 Chelsea substation, it did not develop distribution

7 feeder routing for the new heaters associated with

8 Solution 4.  Is that correct?

9     A.  [ZBIKOWSKI]  That is correct.

10     Q.  I'm curious about how the company went

11 about developing the cost estimate for Solution 4

12 without information on the routing of the new

13 distribution feeders.

14     A.  [ZBIKOWSKI]  We assumed, attempting to

15 obtain a route as short as possible between Chelsea

16 and -- Chelsea Creek Crossing, we assumed a couple

17 of paths, and they were trying to have the least

18 amount of distribution duct bank and cable in them.

19 That's what the numbers developed.  But they were

20 not necessarily based upon actual engineering plans.

21 So my concern with the 488 development, given, as I

22 spoke to you earlier, about the constraints in

23 Eastern Avenue, once we fully came up with -- we

24 came up with a route, it would be longer and well



 EFSB 14-4, DPU 14-153+154 - Vol. 1 - 1/6/2016

FARMER ARSENAULT BROCK LLC

166

1 beyond what I've identified for our distribution

2 costs.

3     Q.  So paraphrasing that, is it the company's

4 position that that the company cost presented for

5 distribution for feeder work is a conservative or

6 low-end estimate?

7     A.  [ZBIKOWSKI]  That's correct.

8     Q.  Would the company still consider the

9 quality or accuracy of this cost estimate provided

10 for Solution 1 and Solution 4 to be comparable?

11     A.  [ZBIKOWSKI]  At this present level, yes,

12 they are.

13     Q.  Could you please turn to EFSB-PA-26.  In

14 this response the company presented a summary of a

15 potential Solution 5, where a new substation would

16 be constructed on the company's Crescent Street site

17 in Chelsea.  I'm wondering what the company's

18 conclusions were with regard to cost or reliability

19 and environmental impacts of this solution compared

20 to the project.

21     A.  [ZICKO]  As far as the miles of new

22 transmission line, it's addressed in the response to

23 EFSB-PA-26.  And we see that the, you know, Solution

24 5 has slightly less transmission line.  It has three
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1 to three and a half times the amount of distribution

2 line.  Both would involve the construction of a new

3 substation.  And you can see that the cost for

4 Solution 5 is approximately $9 million higher, to

5 get you the same amount of MVA.

6             Again, the Crescent Street site is, I'll

7 say, right around the corner from where the Chelsea

8 substation is, and in developing the distribution

9 cost, they assumed kind of a similar -- made a

10 similar set of assumptions to if we were to expand

11 the Chelsea substation.  But obviously with the

12 higher MVA capacity gain, there would be more

13 feeders.

14     A.  [BERGERON]  With regard to environmental

15 impact, as presented in our response, at a high

16 level there doesn't seem to be a large difference

17 with regard to environmental impacts, although we do

18 note that Solution 5 would require a greater amount

19 of street work from the additional distribution

20 work.  But we haven't analyzed the specific housing

21 units, residential, other environmental facts along

22 that length.

23     Q.  Any differentials in the reliability

24 between the two solutions?



 EFSB 14-4, DPU 14-153+154 - Vol. 1 - 1/6/2016

FARMER ARSENAULT BROCK LLC

168

1     A.  [ZICKO]  To the extent that Solution 5

2 would require longer distribution feeders, they

3 would be -- it would be considered less reliable.

4 Again, as Mr. Zbikowski can testified to earlier,

5 longer cable, more splices, more exposure.

6     Q.  So, to summarize, from a cost and

7 reliability perspective the company would submit

8 that the project would be preferred to Solution 5

9 but from an environmental perspective they're quite

10 similar?

11     A.  [ZICKO]  From a cost and reliability

12 perspective, the proposed project is superior.  From

13 an environmental perspective, as Mr. Bergeron had

14 testified, you know, notwithstanding the impacts

15 from the longer distribution circuits, the

16 environmental impacts would be roughly the same.

17     Q.  Thank you.  With regard to the cost of the

18 distribution feeder work included in the Solution 5

19 estimate, if it was on the same basis as the costs

20 developed for Solution 4, does that mean it's

21 assumed the same egress for these distribution

22 feeders?

23     A.  [ZICKO]  No.  It was assumed that the

24 Crescent Street site would have -- would not have
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1 the same egress solutions.  It fronts on Crescent

2 and Villa, so we'd have two potential locations for

3 egress.

4     Q.  So is it fair to assume the same $50.8

5 million distribution feeder cost for Solution 5 and

6 for Solution 4?

7     A.  [ZICKO]  Not including the cost to obtain

8 extra egress, whatever that would be.

9     Q.  So paraphrasing again:  Rather than being

10 the lower-end estimate for the distribution feeder

11 work, the 50.8 million, it's the company's testimony

12 that that would be the likely cost of the feeders?

13     A.  [ZICKO]  I think -- I think likely or

14 probable.  Again, not having done detailed

15 engineering on the routing, you know, I think likely

16 and probable are realistic, probably appropriate

17 terms.

18     Q.  But would it be correct to say it's

19 primarily the difference in cost between Solution 5

20 and the project that makes the project preferable,

21 given that the longer -- the reliability differences

22 were based purely on the longer feeders, which I

23 understood from earlier testimony are not abnormally

24 long compared to elsewhere in the company's system,
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1 and that the environmental impacts are similar, with

2 the exception of additional distribution street

3 work?

4     A.  [ZBIKOWSKI]  In constructing a new

5 substation, it's always preferred to get closer to

6 the load that you're trying to supply.  The best

7 location, the optimal location, for a new substation

8 development is in East Boston, and if it's at all

9 possible, as close as we could get to the easements

10 where all our existing crossing comes over, so that

11 whatever existing distribution infrastructure is

12 supplied from Chelsea Station 488 can be readily

13 brought into the new substation, which is provided

14 to us by this East Eagle Street facility.

15             So yes, you may look at it and say I've

16 got 75 MVA, and yes, the load -- the lines aren't

17 necessarily very, very long -- they may be a mile or

18 a mile and a quarter longer.  But still, the best

19 solution would be to put this particular substation

20 with its 75-MVA capability within East Boston and

21 also allow us to provide any additional growth in

22 the East Boston area beyond that 75 MVA, rather than

23 continuously bringing longer cables, distribution

24 cables directly to it.
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1             And at the same time we have this

2 approach so that we can readily integrate that

3 substation without adversely impacting any customers

4 as we cut it over -- the distribution circuits to

5 that particular substation.

6     Q.  Would you expect cutover problems for

7 Solution 5?

8     A.  [ZBIKOWSKI]  The issue would be at that

9 location you'll have to cut into the creek crossing

10 most likely.  That's where you'd probably try to do

11 it.  And that adds a little bit of complexity as you

12 come out of the creek, on distribution, to try to

13 tie in.  We don't have that at the East Eagle

14 substation.  It's already on the streets that are

15 emanating in close proximity to East Eagle Street.

16 So it will be a simpler cutover.

17     Q.  So to summarize, the company's position is

18 that the project would be preferable to Solution 5

19 for a number of reliability reasons identified, as

20 well as from a cost perspective.

21     A.  [ZBIKOWSKI]  Yes, that's correct.

22     Q.  Thank you.

23     A.  [ZBIKOWSKI]  You're welcome.

24     Q.  If you could please refer to EFSB-PA-1 and
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1 PA-23.

2     A.  [ZBIKOWSKI]  Okay.

3     Q.  The company stated that ISO New England

4 recommended the project in the Greater Boston area

5 transmission solutions study.  The company then

6 clarified that the focus of the solutions study was

7 on the transmission needs and did not address the

8 distribution needs, like capacity at the Chelsea

9 substation.  Accordingly, the solutions study

10 recommended a new 115-kV line running directly

11 between Mystic and Chelsea substations rather than

12 the 4.7-mile line of the new substation proposed in

13 the project.  Is that correct?

14     A.  [ANDREW]  Yes.

15     Q.  Does ISO New England support the subsequent

16 change in project scope proposed by the company

17 between what was presented in the 2015 solutions

18 study and what is presented here as the project?

19     A.  [ANDREW]  Yes, they do.

20     Q.  If you could please consider a scenario

21 where approval of the East Eagle Street substation

22 was not granted at this time.  Would the company

23 still want to proceed with the new transmission line

24 between the Mystic and Chelsea substations that
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1 travels towards Chelsea Creek Crossing, or would it

2 recommend proceeding with the direct

3 Mystic-to-Chelsea line originally proposed by ISO

4 New England and in the future constructing two new

5 lines from Mystic or Chelsea substations to East

6 Eagle Street if that substation was required?

7     A.  [ANDREW]  We would get into the cost

8 discussion with the ISO.  The ISO would want us to

9 present the direct path and the cost estimate for

10 that, and that would set the standard for what they

11 would consider for regionalized cost.

12             So if we were then to say, well, what we

13 want to do is come over here, you know, and kind of

14 plan for the future, they'll say, "Fine, but that's

15 on your nickel.  That's a local cost."  If that's

16 $20 million more, then you localize the 20 million

17 and we regionalize the other portion of the costs.

18             So I think that is a question, you know,

19 probably -- probably a bridge we'd have to cross

20 when the time came.  But I think we'd certainly

21 consider it.  It would make sense in a forward-

22 looking environment, from the constructability and

23 buildout of the system.  But then the question is on

24 costs and are we prudently expending the costs.
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1     Q.  What facilities would be required to set up

2 the new transmission line between Mystic and Chelsea

3 for a feasible and cost-effective future connection

4 of the East Eagle Street substation?  So under that

5 hypothetical where you were planning for the future,

6 would there need to be changes to the design of the

7 line to make for a relatively simple and

8 cost-effective future connection across the river?

9     A.  [ANDREW]  I guess in one sense, we would

10 probably either route it all the way across the

11 creek crossing, bring it all the way over and bring

12 it all the way back, so the cut-in would be fairly

13 simple and fairly localized right near the

14 substation, because, otherwise, if you took a direct

15 path, then what we would end up doing is find

16 manhole locations, splice-point locations, and then

17 we'd cut the loop in and bring it back.

18             You know, so I think we'd have to do the

19 street layouts and see what the obstacles are.  One

20 of our big problems, one of the things we have

21 learned digging in the area over there recently, is

22 that underground construction is very complicated.

23 We expect to find Jimmy Hoffa any one of these days

24 when we put a shovel in the ground.
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1             But it is complicated.  You do hit

2 barriers that cause you to have to reroute and take

3 a different path.

4     Q.  So the cost of such an option, the

5 difference in cost between the project and such a

6 solution, would that just likely be just the East

7 Eagle Street substation components of the cost, if

8 you were going to go all the way across the creek to

9 the substation site anyway and then back to Chelsea?

10     A.  [ANDREW]  Right.  So the costs at a later

11 point in time of then building the substation?

12     Q.  The difference between the project and a

13 solution where you do the line first and then

14 potentially the substation.

15     A.  [ANDREW]  And then do the substation later.

16 I think the difference then would be, if we went all

17 the way across -- because from the crossing to the

18 substation site itself is several hundred yards.

19     A.  [ZICKO]  Yes.

20     A.  [ANDREW]  300 yards, 400 yards.  It's

21 not -- it's not very far.  So there would certainly

22 be duct bank and cable, but it's not a great

23 distance.  So it would really be the cost of the

24 substation with a little bit more added.
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1     Q.  So looking at the costs in 3-11, the

2 transmission-line costs associated with the project,

3 47.3 million, in that range, for the transmission

4 only?

5     A.  [ANDREW]  The line costs would stay

6 substantially the same, and then the substation

7 cost -- again, adjusted in time -- you know, would

8 be expended later, yes.

9     Q.  Would there be any differences between the

10 environmental impacts associated with completing

11 both the line and the substation at the same time

12 versus separately in time?

13     A.  [BERGERON]  I don't think there's any

14 environmental benefit to doing both station and line

15 separately.  Is that your question?

16     Q.  Any differences between -- so benefits

17 or -- advantages or disadvantages from the

18 environmental perspective of doing the line and

19 station together versus the line and station

20 separately over time.

21     A.  [BERGERON]  I think from a

22 construction-sequencing perspective and temporary

23 impacts to the area around the substation, if you

24 did them both concurrently, then the construction
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1 window or time of disturbance of the construction

2 would be shorter, whereas if you did them in two

3 separate phases, that area would incur two separate

4 construction-activity durations that would be

5 distinct, and would incur all the appurtenant like

6 noise, et cetera, impacts from that.

7             So I think you're building next to the

8 same resources; it's just a matter of do you impact

9 them once, one duration, or two separate events.

10     Q.  Are there any efficiencies from a

11 construction-timeline perspective or how long it

12 would take to complete construction for doing them

13 at the same time or separately?

14     A.  [O'MALLEY]  I think if you did them

15 concurrently, the efficiency is, as Marc just

16 suggested, in the duration of disturbances.  The

17 substation is on an enclosed site, so it's excluded,

18 let's say, whereas the street work would have to

19 extend through the streets.  So doing them at the

20 same time, you can do them at the same time and the

21 overall construction is minimized -- duration.

22     A.  [ANDREW]  May I add one comment in relation

23 to cost?  With the work that is taking place at the

24 ISO under the FERC 1000 order -- the FERC 1000 order
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1 actually relates to regionalization of costs.

2 Because this project is currently grandfathered, the

3 transmission-substation-related costs to East Eagle

4 Street can be regionalized if it's done under the

5 scope of this regional project that's there.  If we

6 separate the two, the substation will not be able to

7 be regionalized, because then it will be driven by

8 strictly a local need, and they will consider it a

9 local cost, to be charged locally.

10     Q.  Thank you.

11 BY MR. YOUNG:

12     Q.  Mr. Zicko, just a question of a technical

13 term.  When you were talking about an extra-big

14 transformer, you said it would have two secondaries,

15 I think I heard you said.  What are secondaries?

16     A.  [ZICKO]  In this case it would be the

17 low-voltage winding.  It would be split between two

18 coils of copper, as opposed to one.

19     Q.  And so that ends up just being bigger and

20 more expensive?

21     A.  [ZICKO]  It ends up being bigger and more

22 expensive and a more complex design, because you

23 have to get each of the two windings to share the

24 load equally.
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1     Q.  Thank you.  Mr. Zbikowski, I think you were

2 talking about underground cable, and I thought you

3 said a million copper.

4     A.  [ZBIKOWSKI]  Yes.

5     Q.  What's a million copper?

6     A.  [ZBIKOWSKI]  A thousand kcmill copper.

7     Q.  Thank you.

8             MS. SEDOR:  That actually concludes the

9 Bench's questioning of the panel with respect to

10 need and project alternatives.  Why don't we go off

11 the record, and we can talk about what we're going

12 to do next.

13             (Discussion off the record.)

14             MS. SEDOR:  Back on the record.  We've

15 had a conversation off the record.  The Bench has

16 concluded its questioning of the company's witnesses

17 with respect to need and project alternatives.  We

18 are concluded with hearings for the day.

19             At 10:00 o'clock tomorrow morning we

20 will begin with the intervenor Channel Fish

21 questioning the company's panel with respect to

22 need, project alternatives, and perhaps some

23 questioning with respect to site selection as well.

24 And then the Bench will begin -- according to how
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1 much time we have tomorrow, the Bench will begin

2 with its questioning with respect to route selection

3 and site selection.

4             MS. KEUTHEN:  May I add that we would

5 have an opportunity to do redirect after the

6 conclusion of intervenor examination on need and

7 alternatives?

8             MS. SEDOR:  Yes.  Thank you, Ms.

9 Keuthen.  The company will have the opportunity to

10 do redirect of the panel after Mr. Thayer has

11 completed his examination with respect to the

12 current panel on the topics of need and project

13 alternatives.

14             The other thing I should mention on the

15 record is that counsel for Channel Fish, Mr. Thayer,

16 has requested that the company provide a brief

17 summary of Mr. Andrew's role in the proceeding and

18 his background, with an attached resume similar to

19 what the company has --

20             No resume?

21             MS. KEUTHEN:  No resume.

22             MR. THAYER:  The description will be

23 sufficient.

24             MS. SEDOR:  I hadn't realized that's
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1 what you had agreed to.  Okay, just a description of

2 his background and his participation in the

3 proceeding.  And the company has agreed to provide

4 that.

5             I want to thank the panel for their help

6 today in developing the record, and we're adjourned,

7 and we'll reconvene tomorrow at 10:00.

8             (4:46 p.m.)
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